
                                                                         

 Page 1   



Contents 

PERFORMANCE REPORT ....................................................................................... 4 

Performance Overview ............................................................................................... 4 

Statement from the Clinical Chair and Chief Officer ............................................. 4 

About NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group ....................... 6 

Our vision ............................................................................................................. 7 

Areas of focus for 2016/17 .................................................................................... 7 

Performance analysis ............................................................................................... 20 

Performance measures ...................................................................................... 20 

Financial performance ........................................................................................ 25 

Key financial performance indicators .................................................................. 27 

Sustainable Development ................................................................................... 30 

Improving quality and safety ............................................................................... 34 

Patient and Public Involvement........................................................................... 35 

Reducing health inequality .................................................................................. 40 

Health and wellbeing strategy ............................................................................. 43 

Summary of performance ................................................................................... 43 

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT .................................................................................. 45 

Corporate Governance Report ................................................................................. 45 

Members Report ...................................................................................................... 45 

Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities ................................................ 51 

Governance Statement ............................................................................................ 54 

Introduction and context ..................................................................................... 54 

Scope of responsibility ........................................................................................ 54 

Governance arrangements and effectiveness .................................................... 55 

Commissioning Forum ........................................................................................ 55 

Governing Body .................................................................................................. 57 

Attendance records for CCG Governing Body and committees .......................... 57 

 Page 2   



Audit Committee ................................................................................................. 60 

Remuneration Committee ................................................................................... 61 

Quality, Safety and Risk Committee ................................................................... 61 

Executive Committee .......................................................................................... 62 

Primary Care Joint Committee ............................................................................ 63 

UK Corporate Governance Code ........................................................................ 63 

Discharge of Statutory Functions ........................................................................ 64 

Risk Management arrangements and effectiveness ........................................... 64 

Capacity to handle risk ....................................................................................... 65 

Risk assessment ................................................................................................. 66 

Other sources of assurance ................................................................................ 68 

Control Issues ..................................................................................................... 72 

Review of economy, efficiency & effectiveness of the use of resources ............. 72 

Delegation of functions ....................................................................................... 74 

Counter fraud arrangements ............................................................................... 74 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion ............................................................................ 76 

Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and 

internal control .................................................................................................... 77 

Conclusion .......................................................................................................... 79 

Remuneration and Staff Report ................................................................................ 80 

Remuneration Report ......................................................................................... 80 

Staff Report ........................................................................................................ 90 

Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report ........................................................ 94 

Report by the Auditors to the members of the CCG ................................................. 95 

Appendix one: full Annual Accounts ....................................................................... 100 
 

 Page 3   



PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Performance Overview   
In our performance overview, there are examples of projects we have delivered on. 

This section includes a statement from the clinical chair and chief officer, information 

about our CCG including our vision, and the areas we have focused on in 2016/17. 

Statement from the Clinical Chair and Chief Officer 
Welcome to the NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

2016/17 annual report. 

There are many positive successes we can celebrate as we look back over the year.  

We have made significant progress towards achieving our local health and care 

economy vision and we continue to work on our programme of transformation as 

outlined within the NHS Five year Forward View.  

We are very fortunate to have good relationships with our partners and have been 

working with them closely through a very challenging year. We have worked hard to 

maintain the quality of services and to continue to improve the health and wellbeing 

of patients within the resources we have available. Much of our effort is focused 

around the issues of poor health outcomes, variation in care and the constrained 

budgets available. Some of these issues are being picked up across our wider 

geography of Northumberland, Tyne and Wear and North Durham - our 

Sustainability and Transformation Plan footprint. 

All clinical commissioning groups in England are subject to a comprehensive annual 

assessment which is led by NHS England. This examines key components and 

considers the strengths, challenges and areas for improvement before applying a 

headline rating of outstanding, good, requires improvement or inadequate. We were 

delighted that during 2016/17 we learnt that our assessment for the previous year 

was rated as ‘outstanding’. We await the outcome of the assessment for 2016/17.  

This assessment highlighted strong system leadership and delivery and continued 

strengthening of relationships. This is resulting in better healthcare and 

improvements in quality of safety and services for local people. 
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Some of our other achievements in 2016/17 include the Care Home Vanguard 

programme where individual GP practices are allocated to a specific care home. 

Through this work fewer Gateshead care home residents have needed an 

emergency admission to hospital. This work is now being introduced across 

Newcastle. 

We concluded our Deciding Together consultation in June 2016 which looked to 

redesign the way in which specialist mental health services are provided across 

Newcastle and Gateshead. The changes will mean the creation of new inpatient 

facilities and the opportunity to innovate a wider range of improved and new 

community services. 

We are also part of the Urgent and Emergency Care Network, with other NHS 

organisations across the North East. Other initiatives have also improved our ability 

to meet the diverse needs of the people of the North East. One such initiative is the 

Great North Care Record (Medical Interoperability Gateway) which will soon be live 

for most of our patients with many of our providers. This means that hospitals (with 

patients’ consent) can see some of the GP practice records, which will mean that we 

can give patients better care.  

Moving forward, there will be a single Sustainability and Transformation plan for the 

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear and North Durham region. This plan will describe 

our shared local vision for 2021 regarding care both in and out of hospital, 

underpinned by better integration with local authority services in respect of 

prevention and social care. 

Finally, we would like to take this opportunity to thank our, member practices, 

partners, staff and patients for all their hard work throughout 2016/17.   

We look forward to continuing to work with you. 

 

 

 

Dr Mark Dornan, Clinical Chair (2016/17) Mark Adams, Chief Officer 
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About NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is the statutory 

health body responsible for planning and buying (commissioning) local NHS care 

and services to meet the needs of the local community. Our membership consists of 

64 GP practices and we are responsible for a local population of approximately half a 

million people across Newcastle and Gateshead. 

Working as a CCG, we commission high quality care, using the most appropriate 

methods and cost-effective resources, to improve healthcare provision for the people 

of Newcastle and Gateshead and reduce disparities in health and social care. By 

using effective clinical decision-making we can make a real impact on the health, 

wellbeing and life expectancy of our patients. 

We know the NHS is facing a period of unprecedented challenges which are not 

unique to our area. These challenges are driven by the following:  

• An ageing population with increasing health needs 

• Health inequalities across the area 

• Levels of smoking, alcohol consumption and obesity higher than the national 

average 

• Over-reliance on hospital based services 

• Increasing high cost drugs and cost of new medical technologies 

• Limited growth in financial allocations in future years 

 

In response to the challenges set out, our collective ambition is to maintain high 

quality and sustainable health and care services for our public and patients, which 

we will achieve through:  

• Ensuring our citizens are fully engaged  

• Wider primary care provided at scale  

• A modern model of integrated care  

• Access to the highest quality urgent and emergency care  

• A step change in the productivity of elective care  

• Specialised services concentrated in centres of excellence 
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Our vision 
Our vision is to transform lives together by prioritising: 

• Involvement: of people in our communities and providers to get the best 
understanding of issues and opportunities 

• Experience: people-centred services that are some of the best in the country 

• Outcome: focusing on preventing illness and reducing inequalities 

This is summarised in the diagram below: 

 

 

Areas of focus for 2016/17 
The following areas have been identified as priorities to ensure the sustainability of 

our local health economy:  

Population Focus  

• Older people  

• Children, young people and families  
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System Focus  

• Collaborative hospital working  

• Intermediate care system  

• Sustainable primary care  

System Approach  

• Prevention and early intervention  

• Individual and community resilience 

We have continued to progress with the development of the new care models 

described within the NHS Five Year Forward View. In line with this, our major areas 

of transformation for 2016/17 continued to be:  

• Mental Health Services 

• Urgent Care Vanguard 

• Care Homes Vanguard 

• Proof of concept model of care in Newcastle 

• Re-procurement of community services in Gateshead 

• Implementation of the General Practice Strategy 

 

In order to ensure our priorities for 2016/17 were aligned with this, we linked each of 

our priorities to these key areas of focus. This can be seen in the ‘plan on a page’, 

given as figure 1, overleaf.  

We will continue to work with partners, stakeholders, the clinical community, patients 

and the public to develop our long term ‘Sustainability and Transformation plan.’  
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Figure 1: Plan on a page 2016/17 
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A summary of our main areas of work and some of our achievements in 2016/17 are 

outlined below. 

Mental health services and learning disabilities 

Deciding Together 

Our Governing Body made its decision to change the way current adult mental 

health services provided by Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

(NTW) are arranged, after a wide ranging public engagement and consultation 

process that took place over the last two years. 

The Governing Body balanced the views of the public and mental health 

professionals, alongside best clinical practice and the resources that are available, in 

order to ensure services are safe and sustainable for the future. 

The changes will mean the creation of new inpatient facilities and the opportunity to 

innovate a wider range of improved and new community services. The decision 

provides the opportunity to make improvements by creating new interlinking 

community and hospital mental health services that will reduce the reliance on 

hospital stays, shorten the time people spend in hospital and overall improve their 

experience of services, helping them to recover sooner, stay well and have fulfilling 

lives. 

Older people’s mental health services in Newcastle will be consolidated, including 

the relocation of some hospital wards.  

The money released from these changes will be invested into new and enhanced 

services that will create a better way for people to be supported and cared for in their 

own communities, minimising the need for inpatient care because new innovative 

services will support them, when they need it. 

The different scenarios were reviewed by independent mental health experts from 

other parts of the county, as well as a local expert panel of clinicians, the ‘clinical 

senate.’ The proposals have also been subject to review by NHS England. 

The CCG is now proceeding with the implementation of the changes, under the 

banner of ‘deciding together – delivering together.’  
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Expanding Minds, Improving Lives – motivating and working together to transform 

mental health services for children and young people 

Working with Newcastle City Council and Gateshead Council, this work focuses on 

improving the mental and emotional health and wellbeing of children, young people 

and families, working with communities to design an effective whole system model of 

support.  

 

Older people 

Care Homes Vanguard in Gateshead 

The Care Homes Vanguard Programme in Gateshead received funding from NHS 

England in 2016/17 to support the development of this work. Over the year, we have 

focused on continuing to engage with older people and the workforce across 

Newcastle and Gateshead in intermediate care. The innovation of this programme is 

building local GP and care home relationships to be proactive in addressing care 

home residents’ medical needs, which leads to avoiding unnecessary hospital 

admissions.  

The Care Home Vanguard Programme sees individual GP practices allocated to a 

specific care home, working closely with care home staff, older person nurse 

specialists and other health professionals to care for residents.  

The programme’s achievements to date have avoiding the need for emergency 

hospital admissions among Gateshead’s care home residents. We are now working 

to raise awareness of this work in Newcastle. 

Volunteer work as part of the vanguard programme 

Self-care advocates have been recruited for a new initiative to share tips for keeping 

healthy and well as an older person and raising awareness of the different services 

available to them, as part of wider plans to transform health and care services in the 

area. 

The five week programme has been delivered in partnership with the North of 

England Mental Health Development Unit (NEMHDU) and since launching has 

allowed eight volunteers to spread awareness about future changes to health and 

care services to over 300 older people. 
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Care Home Champions 

Care Home Champions have strengthened the voice of the workforce in care homes 

across Newcastle and Gateshead. 

Dementia 

In 2016 the government published a new dementia strategy (Prime Minister’s 

Dementia Challenge 2020) for the next five years. The key elements are to continue 

to make sure the dementia diagnosis rates are maintained at optimal rates (75%) 

and that there is good post-diagnostic care. Thanks to the hard work of practices, the 

dementia diagnosis rates in Newcastle have improved from about 50% to over 70% 

of the predicted rates over the last two years.  

To improve patients’ access to a timely diagnosis and help patients and carers to 

have improved post-diagnostic support, we have commissioned Alzheimer’s Society 

to provide Primary Care Dementia Support Workers who will give individual personal 

support through diagnosis and post-diagnosis. 

 

Children, young people and families 

The Little Orange Book 

We have launched a new booklet to help parents of poorly younger children aged  

0-5 years with information about certain common conditions. The little orange book 

contains advice and tips on how to manage common illnesses and problems that 

babies and young children often experience in the first 5 years of their lives.  It also 

has information on more serious conditions, what to look out for and how to get 

help.   The book is being given out in Newcastle and Gateshead via the Health 

Visitors to pregnant women at their 28-week antenatal visit, at postnatal checks and 

baby and toddler health visitor clinics, to schools, children centres, pharmacists and 

to GP surgeries. We aim for each household to have a copy, ideally kept with their 

household medicines. 

Expanding Minds Improving Lives / Young Commissioners  

A partnership project team undertook a listening and pre-consultation exercise with 

key stakeholders, children young people and their families. Workshops explored 

experiences of the existing mental health services and what could be improved. A 
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desktop review alongside a call for submissions provided more evidence of 

stakeholder views.  

Young commissioners were recruited to work alongside statutory commissioners to 

decide on how mental health services should be redesigned to better suit the needs 

of children, young people and families.  Over the last year a core group of fourteen 

young people have worked with the CCG and have undertaken training to 

understand what is meant by commissioning, the legal framework, jargon busting 

and processes.  They have led on work to design a future website/ information for 

services for Children and Young People accessing Mental Health Services. They 

have also organised and delivered an event for young people to raise awareness of 

young people’s mental health and to sign post young people to local services.  The 

commissioners hosted an event at Tyneside ‘Pop Up’ Cinema to celebrate the work 

of the children and young people who worked with Helix Arts to develop their 

CHOAS DVD. The video can be viewed at https://vimeo.com/173909530 

This work will guide us in commissioning out mental health and well-being services 

for younger people.  

The young commissioners are a committed and passionate group of young people 

who have relished this opportunity to be involved in the redesigning of children and 

young people’s mental health services.  

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 

A Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) for children and Young People with SEND was 

appointed in September 2016 and is currently the Clinical Director for Children 

Young People and Families, the Named GP for Child Safeguarding (in Newcastle), 

as well as a local GP partner and trainer.  The DCO has oversight of all healthcare 

professionals delivering care to individual disabled children and young people with 

special educational needs. Work to date has included a review of Education 

Healthcare plans, working with multi-agency colleagues on developing appropriate 

pathways of care, delivering presentations at teacher and parents conferences, and 

supporting initiatives to improve transition to adulthood for children and young people 

with complex needs. He has also worked with primary care to raise the profile of the 

SEND agenda.  The work of the DCO received positive feedback during the formal 

Gateshead SEND inspection by Ofsted and CQC. 
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Schools 

The CCG is undertaking awareness raising assemblies for Year 9 students, 

delivered by GPs and school nurses.  The awareness raising sessions inform pupils 

as to what GPs and school nurses can do to support their health and wellbeing 

needs as well as how to make an appointment and access confidential help from 

their GP.  This project has engaged local GPs and encouraged them to visit their 

local schools, as well as helping signpost young people away from inappropriate use 

of urgent care services such as A+E. 

Developing a Child and Young Person Friendly General Practice 

Every GP practice in Newcastle and Gateshead has identified a GP Child Health 

Lead to champion the needs of children and young people on their patient registers. 

These Leads attended two half-day training events where internal and external 

speakers delivered a range of presentations around varied topics including 

Depression in Young People, Legal Highs, Child Sexual Exploitation, the Sick and 

Injured Child, Fabricated or Induced Illness, 1001 Critical Days.  Every practice also 

has a school nurse link to help develop frontline working. The widespread promotion 

of the Children and Young Person Communication Star for Primary Care has helped 

link general practice into the wider children’s workforce. This agenda was supported 

by widespread engagement of GP practices in spotting the Sick Child e-learning and 

promotion of same day access for the acutely ill child. 

 

Long-term conditions 
We have been working hard to improve the care and support of people with one or 

more long term conditions and launched a consultation to help understand how 

people manage their long-term condition, what problems occur and what they 

thought would help. 

Newcastle Healthy Lungs Programme 

Launched in 2015, the Newcastle Healthy Lungs Programme is a rehabilitation 

service that is helping to treat patients suffering from breathing difficulties known as 

chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD). The service was developed by a 

range of organisations including specialists from Newcastle Hospitals and the British 

Lung Foundation, as well as patients with COPD. 
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People who have used this service are noticing the difference and one service user 

described this programme as “a brilliant programme with lots of benefits, and I’m 

really pleased that I started. I know how to manage my breathlessness from the 

education talk that they provide. I have more energy now and want to go out 

shopping rather than sitting at home all day. It’s great to know that programmes like 

this exist!” 

Year of Care 

Year of Care is continuing to progress well in Newcastle and Gateshead.  

Our Long Terms Conditions Strategy recognises multi morbidity in Gateshead. An 

initiative launched by Gateshead CCG in September 2014 aims to transform practice 

from single disease specific approaches to multi morbidity in General Practice. The 

model of care is proactive, patient centred and facilitates a shared approach to 

management, encourage self-care where possible and facilitate care and support 

planning conversations.  

Practices across Gateshead are successfully making the move to a care and support 

planning (the Year of Care approach) to help patients manage their long-term 

conditions more effectively.  

The Integrated Long Term Conditions Management work which supports the Year of 

Care and systems change is already underway, with the majority of GP practices 

signed up to deliver this work. 

Stroke 

We carried out a review of acute stroke services in Gateshead. As a result of the 

review, a new model of care is being developed to ensure we deliver the best stroke 

care we can. The new model came into effect at the end of November 2016, with 

benefits for patients including improved standards and having access to the most up-

to-date treatments, which will save lives.  

Personal Health Budgets 

The local offer for personal health budgets has been agreed. This means that the 

CCG can now offer personal health budgets to:  

• Adults who receive NHS continuing healthcare support 

• Children and young people who receive NHS continuing healthcare support 
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• Adults and children with learning disabilities and/or autism who have complex 

health needs 

• A child who has special education needs and disabilities as part of their 

education, health and care plan 

Ways to Wellness 

More than 1,000 people in Newcastle with long-term health conditions are 

transforming their lives, thanks to a pioneering new initiative called Ways to 

Wellness. The work is funded by investment specialist Bridges Ventures, with returns 

for investors dependent on the improvements that Ways to Wellness brings about. It 

is based on the principle of social prescribing, which sees GPs prescribing lifestyle 

and activity changes rather than just drugs or other medical help. 

 

Planned care 

Major trauma rehabilitation service 

A new Major Trauma Rehabilitation Service (MTRS) has launched, treating patients 

with complex rehabilitation needs. The service is formed by a multidisciplinary team 

based in a central hub, to improve coordination of treatment for patients admitted to 

the major trauma centre at the RVI in Newcastle. 

Outpatient follow up added value 

The practice of out-patient follow up for significant periods is common, but since 

December 2015 we have been keen for our providers to demonstrate that this will 

only occur when there is an evidence base for the benefit to patients care. Much of 

this doesn't add value to the patients’ experience and the resulting reduction in out-

patient appointments will help in improving capacity for the providers. 

Musculo-skeletal services (MSK) 

We are working with partners to re-procure MSK services and a significant part of 

this will incorporate the on-going back pain work. Alongside this, the back pain work 

has been concentrating on the identification of best pathways from primary to 

secondary care and where and when imaging for patients with back pain symptoms 

should take place. 
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Urgent care 

Urgent care engagement 

To develop the urgent primary care service we undertook engagement activity to 

consider how current provision can be enhanced, including extended access to GPs 

across hubs in Newcastle and Gateshead.  

This work intends to explore the attitudes of patients and their expectations of an 

urgent primary care service, including understanding what ‘urgent primary care’ 

means to patients, exploring how primary care can be made the ‘first point of call’ 

and identifying how patients would prefer to access urgent care primary care, in 

service hours and out-of-hours.  

This work will influence the 2017 service model for urgent primary care services 

across Newcastle and Gateshead, specifically in relation to the way in which people 

will access support.  

Winter campaign 

As a region, all CCGs within the North East worked together to develop a regional 

marketing campaign for winter. This work was developed using a social marketing 

approach, as part of the North East Urgent and Emergency Care Network. The 

campaign used ‘plasticine people’ to highlight good self-care, raise awareness of the 

expert advice available for free at every pharmacy in the region, and promote the 

new NHS Child Health app, which helps parents of under-fives look after their 

children’s health.  

The campaign started in mid-November 2016, to coincide with National Self-Care 

Week and continued until the end of March 2017. 

The CCG also supported the Stay Well this Winter campaign, which was launched 

by NHS England and focused on people aged 65 years and over or people with long-

term health conditions and their carers, family and friends to take specific actions to 

stay well over the winter, including seeking advice from a pharmacist at the first 

signs of illness and having the flu jab. 

Think Pharmacy First 

Think Pharmacy First has been designed to allow people who receive free 

prescriptions to go straight to their pharmacist for treatment, without initially having to 
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collect a prescription from their GP. The scheme will allow community pharmacies to 

diagnose and provide free medication for some illnesses and minor ailments.   

The scheme is supported by GPs and pharmacists, including the Local Medical 

Committee and Local Pharmaceutical Committee.   

Implementation of the General Practice Strategy 
Our vision for general practice in Newcastle Gateshead CCG is to see: 

• Groups of practices working together at scale, delivering new models of care 

that are integrated with community, secondary care, social care and the 

voluntary sector 

• A flexible workforce with enhanced skills across the system to deliver higher 

quality care and improved access 

• Patients see the right person at the right time and in the right place 

• Clinical systems and a shared clinical record support the new care models 

 

In September 2016 we held a ballot among our practices regarding primary care 

commissioning. The result was that 86% of our practices were in favour of the CCG 

taking on delegated commissioning responsibilities for primary medical (GP) 

services. NHS England approved our application to take on this responsibility from 

April 2017.  

 

North East Urgent and Emergency Care Network 
All NHS organisations in the North East are part of the North East Urgent and 

Emergency Care Network. In 2016/17, the network received £2.9m from NHS 

England’s New Care Models programme to implement various schemes across the 

North East. 

Some of these schemes included: 

• Respond - simulation training package for mental health crisis care which 

rolled out across the region following its successful launch in September. Its 

aim is to transform professional responses to mental health crisis through 

better collaboration and knowledge 
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• Under 5 app (NHS child health) – the app gives easy to understand 

guidance on childhood illnesses and recognising when your child is unwell, as 

well as advice on when and where to seek treatment 

• Behavioural analysis - A key element of the network’s approach is 

undertaking high quality market research to understand the views and 

behaviours of patients and NHS staff in relation to urgent and emergency care 

services 

• Great North Care Record - The Great North Care Record (also known as 

MIG – Medical Interoperability Gateway) aims to bring the region up to a 

common standard of information sharing, saving time and improving patient 

safety. The MIG enables real-time access to key primary care patient 

information at the point of care (emergency departments, GP out of hours 

services, mental health trusts, NHS 111 and the ambulance service) 

• Flight deck - a real-time application displaying the current status of 

emergency care across the region as well as predicting the likely scenario 

four to twelve hours ahead 

• Clinical hub - the clinical hub involves Emergency Department consultants 

working within the hub on Monday and Friday 6–10pm and Saturday and 

Sunday 8am– 4pm, to provide enhanced clinical assessment of patients who 

would otherwise be directed to their nearest Emergency Department 

 

Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) 
There are 44 STP footprints across the country. NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG is 

part of the Northumberland, Tyne and Wear and North Durham plan. Health and 

social care organisations across Northumberland, Tyne and Wear, and North 

Durham have assisted in developing an ambitious draft plan to improve the health 

and wellbeing of the 1.7m people living in the area. 

This plan will describe our shared local vision for 2021 regarding care both inside 

and outside our hospitals, underpinned by better integration with local authority 

services in respect of prevention, early intervention and social care. 

The first version was published at the end of November 2016. The publication of the 

draft STP started a programme of engagement that ran until the end of January 2017 
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to raise awareness of the proposals and listen to any ideas or concerns about the 

detail of the draft plan. The outcomes from this phase of engagement helped to 

shape the next version of the STP. Any subsequent potential proposals for major 

changes to NHS services will be subject to a programme of formal public 

engagement and consultation in the usual way. 

 

Key issues and risks 
Information about our key issues and risks is given in the governance statement, 

which is part of the accountability report later in this document.  

As described in the performance analysis section later in this report, the CCG did 

achieve a financial surplus for 2016/17. However, the major risk to the CCG 

throughout 2016/17 related to meeting the statutory financial duties and achieving 

the control total set by NHS England. This continues to be a risk into 2017/18, as 

increasing pressures on the CCG finances continue, particularly from demographic 

pressures.  

  

Performance analysis   

Performance measures 
We have continued to work hard to achieve our targets as set out by the NHS 

Constitution and the CCG Assurance Framework. Here we highlight our performance 

against the key areas, such as A&E four hour waits, ambulance handover times, 

cancer waiting times, referral to treatment, our local quality indicators, healthcare 

acquired infections and mental health. The most up to date available data has been 

used to prepare this report. We also give details of our financial performance and our 

approach to sustainable development. 

In line with the NHS England CCG Assurance Framework, which aims to provide 

confidence that CCGs are operating effectively, Newcastle Gateshead CCG was 

placed into the category of ‘Group One’ CCGs. This group of CCGs is assured as 

good or higher across all of the domains in the Framework.  
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Outcome framework 
CCG performance is reviewed by NHS England to ensure that it is delivering quality 

outcomes for patients, both locally and as part of the national standards. In some 

areas we are performing particularly well, but there are some areas that still require 

improvement. 

Urgent care performance 

A&E Four hour waits A 
The principal measure used to assess local urgent care performance is the standard 

that 95% of patients attending A&E will be admitted or discharged within four hours.  

In 2016/17 data as at February 2017 show that 95% of Newcastle Gateshead CCG 

patients were admitted or discharged within four hours. Performance at Gateshead 

Health NHS FT was above the required level for the year, whilst that for Newcastle 

upon Tyne Hospitals NHS FT was marginally below the required standard in the 

second half of the year, due to a number of contributing factors not least higher than 

expected attendance from other areas. A recovery action plan is currently in place.  

Ambulance responses G 
 R 
Performance is measured at both an individual CCG (Newcastle Gateshead 

patients) and a trust aggregate level (North East Ambulance Service NHS FT).  

In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that 75.6% of Newcastle Gateshead 

patients (Cat A Red 1) requiring an ambulance urgently because their condition was 

considered immediately life threatening, who had an ambulance arrive within the 

required standard of eight minutes, above the required minimum standard of 75%.  

This gives a ‘green’ rating for the CCG for this indicator.  

However, the Cat A Red 1 response times for North East Ambulance Services 

(NEAS) NHS FT across the region did not meet this minimum standard.  

Similarly, in 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that 70.7% of Newcastle 

Gateshead patients (Cat A Red 2) requiring an ambulance for non-life threatening 

conditions had an ambulance arrive within eight minutes, against a minimum 

standard of 75%. The response time performance for NEAS patients overall was 

also below the required standard.  

 Page 21   



In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that 94.4% of Newcastle Gateshead 

patients who required a fully equipped ambulance to attend urgently, but did not 

have a condition considered immediately life threatening having an ambulance arrive 

within 19 minutes, marginally below the required minimum standard of 95%.  

NEAS NHS FT is currently implementing a recovery action plan across the 

organisation and an improvement trajectory has been agreed.   

A&E decision to admit to admission > 12 Hours G 
Neither Gateshead Health NHS FT nor the Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals NHS FT 

had any incidents of patients waiting more than 12 hours from the decision to admit 

to actual admission, for the last two consecutive years. 

Cancer performance 

Cancer waiting times G 
The NHS Constitution required that CCGs must achieve a set of cancer waiting 

times standards.  All key standards are currently being met for the patients of 

Newcastle Gateshead CCG in respect of: 

Two week wait (2WW) all cancers G 
In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that the percentage of patients who 

are currently receiving an outpatient appointment within two weeks when referred by 

their GP is currently at the required level.   

Two week wait (2WW) breast symptomatic G 
In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show the percentage of patients who were 

referred urgently for an outpatient appointment with breast symptoms and received 

their appointment within two weeks is currently at the required level.  

31 day first treatment – all cancers G 
In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that the percentage of patients who 

were diagnosed with cancer who commenced treatment within 31 days was within 

the required standard. 

62 day GP referral to first treatment for cancer G 

In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that the percentage of patients who 

were diagnosed with cancer and commenced treatment within 62 days, following an 

urgent referral from their GP is currently above the required standard. 
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Other cancer standards 
 
In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that other cancer measures are 

currently performing within required standards:  

o 31 day treatment – surgery G 
 

o 31 day treatment –drugs G 
 

o 31 day treatment – radiotherapy G 
 

o 62 day screening to first treatment for cancer G 
 

Healthcare associated infections 

Healthcare associated infections (HCAI) A 
All CCGs have objectives for HCAIs set by NHS England. There is a zero tolerance 

of MRSA (Methicillin Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus), so all commissioners and 

providers targets are zero. Organisations across the North East have demonstrated 

an improvement in the HCAI rates compared to 2015/16 and it has been 

acknowledged nationally that there have been significant improvements over recent 

years. CCGs are required to meet national standards for clostridium difficile (CDiff) 

and MRSA. 

In 2016/17 the data as at February 2017 show that there have been provisionally six 

published cases of MRSA at Newcastle Hospitals NHS FT and no published cases 

of MRSA at Gateshead Health NHS FT. Newcastle Gateshead CCG was within the 

annual threshold for the maximum number of cases of C Diff with 141 cases in 

2016/17 (against the threshold of 142 for the year).  

Newcastle Gateshead CCG continues to host the Healthcare Acquired Infection 

Partnership to jointly review action plans and share leaning across Northumbria 

Healthcare NHS FT, Gateshead Health NHS FT and Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals 

NHS FT. 

Improving access to psychological therapies  

Access G 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG continues to deliver good access to psychological 

therapies for patients diagnosed with depression or anxiety, at a level in excess of 

the 15% national requirement.  
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Waiting times A 

Newcastle Gateshead patients accessing psychological therapies are currently 

waiting less than 6 and 18 weeks for their initial appointment in Gateshead (within 

the required standards) but in Newcastle the standards are currently outside of the 

required standard (based on data as at January 2017). 

49.2% of Newcastle Gateshead CCG patients accessing psychological therapies 

move to recovery (based on data as at January 2017) which is marginally below the 

national requirement of 50%.  

Following service redesign, there is currently an improvement plan in place in 

Newcastle which includes recruitment, improved clinical supervision and case 

management. 

 

Mixed-sex accommodation 

Mixed-sex accommodation G 
Under the NHS Constitution, providers of NHS funded care are expected to eliminate 

mixed-sex accommodation. There have been no breaches of mixed-sex 

accommodation in 2016/17. 

Referral to treatment 

Referral to treatment G 

In 2016/17 data as at February 2017 show that 93.7% of Newcastle Gateshead CCG 

patients who continued to wait for treatment had been waiting less than 18 weeks, 

well above the required standard of 92%.  

Friends and family test 

The friends and family test is intended to be a simple assessment which measures 

patient experience of our main acute providers. Current experience at Newcastle 

upon Tyne Hospitals NHS FT and Gateshead Health NHS FT has been reported by 

patients as positive, although response rates, particularly at Newcastle Hospitals 

NHS FT A&E, require some improvement. 
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Financial performance 
The Governing Body approved a commissioning budget for 2016/17 based on an 

initial allocation of £700m, excluding the running costs allowance of £10.6m. Within 

this budget approval was a planned surplus of £8.8m, with a further 1% (£7.0m) held 

as an uncommitted reserve.   

As set out in the 2016/17 NHS Planning Guidance, CCGs were required to hold the 

1% reserve uncommitted from the start of the year, created by setting aside the 

monies that CCGs were otherwise required to spend non-recurrently. This was 

intended to be released for investment in the NHS Five Year Forward View 

transformation priorities, to the extent that evidence emerged of risks not arising or 

being effectively mitigated through other means. 

In the event, the national financial position across the provider sector has been such 

that NHS England has been unable to allow CCGs’ 1% non-recurrent monies to be 

spent.  Therefore, to comply with this requirement, NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 

has released its 1% reserve thereby contributing to an increased surplus for 2016/17 

of £10.7m.  This surplus will be carried forward for drawdown in future years. 

The final resource allocation for the CCG in 2016/17 was £732m, against which 

expenditure totalled £721m and was applied in the following way:  

 

 Page 25   



 

 

 

 

 Page 26   



Key financial performance indicators 

Revenue resource limit 
The CCG’s performance for 2016/17 is as follows: 

Revenue resource limit 2016/17 

£000 

Total net operating cost for the financial year 720,878 

Final revenue resource limit for year 731,594 

Underspend against revenue resource limit 10,716 

 

Better Payment Practice Code 

There is a financial obligation under the Better Practice Payment Code to pay 95% of 

creditors within 30 days of invoicing or receipt of invoice or goods, whichever is the 

later. Overall performance for the year was that 99.59% of correctly addressed and 

undisputed invoices were paid within the required 30 days as a percentage of the 

total value of invoices paid and 96.78% as a percentage of the total number of 

invoices paid in the year. 

Better Payment Practice Code 

 

2016/17 

Number 

2016/17 

£000 

Non-NHS creditors   

Total bills paid in the year 13,975 133,282 

Total bills paid within target 13,487 131,565 

Percentage of bills paid within target 96.51% 98.71% 

   

NHS creditors   

Total bills paid in the year 3,660 508,174 

Total bills paid within target 3,580 507,282 

Percentage of bills paid within target 97.81% 99.82% 
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Running costs 
The CCG is required to maintain running costs within an allowance of £22.00 per 

head of population, equating to £10.6m in 2016/17. The broad definition of running 

costs is that it will include any cost incurred that is not a direct payment for the 

provision of healthcare or healthcare related services.  

Running costs 2016/17 

Running costs (£000) 9,182 

Population (number) 481,867 

Running cost per head of weighted population (£) 19.06 

 

Looking ahead 

2017/18 will be the third year of operation for Newcastle Gateshead CCG, during 

which we expect to see continued emphasis on system-wide planning, both across 

health and social care in Newcastle and Gateshead and over our wider Sustainability 

and Transformation footprint.  

Funding allocations move into the second year of the three year cycle published in 

January 2015, with growth in the funding allocation for Newcastle Gateshead CCG 

planned to range between 2% and 3.7% to 2020/21.   

In addition the CCG has successfully applied to move to level three delegated 

commissioning for Primary Medical Services from April 2017 onwards, which will 

increase the CCG funding allocation by £67m in 2017/18. 

For 2017/18 the CCG will receive 2% recurrent growth funding for programme costs, 

with the total change in allocations summarised below: 

Initial allocations 2017/18 
£000 

Running cost allocation 10,589 
Programme cost allocation 711,087 
Primary Medical Services allocation 67,357 

Total funding allocation 789,033 
 

Programme growth in 2017/18 is offset by non-recurrent reductions for specialised 

commissioning transfers and tariff changes.  
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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG has set an initial budget for 2017/18 for the 

following commissioned services:  

 £m 
Acute services 360 

Mental health and learning disabilities contracts 73 

Community contracts 61 

Ambulance contracts 19 

Continuing care and funded nursing care/S117 70 

Primary care and prescribing 97 

Primary care commissioning 67 

Other services 32 

Total 779 

 

A finance and activity plan has been formulated that brings together the 

commissioning plans of the CCG with the delivery of national business 

rules/planning guidance, and the expected contract activity and costs for 2017/18, 

whilst maintaining the financial obligations of the CCG. 

Key assumptions within the plan meet the national business rules and include: 

• Provision of 0.5% contingency, totalling £3.9m 

• A control total of £3.0m surplus 

• Net acute tariff increase of 0.1%  

• Anticipated Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) plans at 
4.3% of the total CCG revenue resource limit 

• Provision of 1% or £7m of the programme allocation for non-recurring use, 
which in 2017/18 is required to be 50% uncommitted, with the balance 
committed to delivering the commissioning plan  

 

Budgeted commissioning spend has also been adjusted for anticipated growth in line 

with Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) estimates, as well as the impact of 

planned investments and efficiency saving. For 2017/18 the CCG financial plan 

includes increased spend in excess of £2.2m on mental health and learning 
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disabilities that ensures compliance with the NHS policy on increased investment in 

these services under ‘Parity of Esteem.’ 

Our Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) plans total £34m, which 

represents 4.3% of the total CCG revenue resource limit. They include a range of 

specific schemes, including initiatives to reduce costs in primary and secondary care 

prescribing, implementing the Right Care programme and plans focused on 

managing growth in acute planned and urgent care.  

The financial environment continues to be increasingly challenging for both 

commissioners and providers in 2017/18, with all partners working across the health 

economy to balance improvements in quality and performance in patient care with 

the need to deliver financial sustainability now and in the future. 

We are working with partners across the Northumberland, Tyne, Wear and North 

Durham STP area to refresh the overall financial plan, taking into account each 

organisation’s operational plans for the next two years.  We will use this to re-assess 

the scale of the financial challenge across the health economy and drive forward 

solutions to ensure we can continue to deliver improvements over the four years to 

2020/21.  

The wider STP plan outlines our assessment of gaps in wellbeing and health, quality 

of services and financial sustainability together with how these will be met across the 

period, in line with the objectives set out in the NHS Forward View.  

Annual accounts 
The annual accounts and primary financial statements for the reporting period have 

been approved by the Governing Body as being prepared under directions issued by 

NHS England and represent a true and fair view of the financial standing of the CCG. 

 

Sustainable Development  
The CCG is responsible for spending public funds and has an obligation and is 

committed to working in a way that has a positive effect on the communities for 

which we commission and procure healthcare services. Sustainability means 

spending public money well and ensuring best value, including the efficient use of 

natural resources and building healthy, resilient communities.  By making the most of 

 Page 30   



social, environmental and economic assets we can improve health and well-being 

both in the immediate and long term even in the context of the rising cost of natural 

resources. Ensuring best value and considering the social and environmental 

impacts is enshrined in the Public Services (Social Value) Act (2012). 

We acknowledge this responsibility to our patients, local communities and the 

environment by working hard to minimise our carbon footprint. 

As a part of the NHS, public health and social care system, it is our duty to contribute 

towards the level of ambition set in 2014 of reducing the carbon footprint of the NHS, 

public health and social care system by 34% (from a 1990 baseline) equivalent to a 

28% reduction from a 2013 baseline by 2020. It is our aim to meet this target by 

reducing our carbon emissions by 28% by 2020 using 2013 as the baseline year.  

Policies 
In order to embed sustainability within our business it is important to explain where in 

our process and procedures sustainability features. 

Area Is sustainability covered? 

Commissioning (environmental) Yes 

Commissioning (social impact) Yes 

Suppliers’ impact Yes 

Business cases Yes 

Travel Yes 

 

Partnerships 
As a commissioning and contracting organisation, we need effective contracting 

mechanisms to deliver our ambitions for sustainable healthcare delivery. The NHS 

policy framework already sets the scene for commissioners and providers to operate 

in a sustainable manner. Crucially for us as a CCG, evidence of this commitment is 

provided through contracting mechanisms. The performance of our main NHS 

providers is shown below. 

More information on these measures is available here: www.sduhealth.org.uk/policy-

strategy/reporting/organisational-summaries.aspx  
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Organisation Name SDMP* On track for 
34% 
reduction 

Good 
Corporate 
Citizen 
(GCC) 

Healthy 
travel plan 

Adaptation SD 
Reporting 
score 

The Newcastle upon 

Tyne Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust  

Yes Yes Yes Yes No Excellent 

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust 
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Minimum 

North East Ambulance 

NHS Foundation Trust 
Yes Yes No No Yes Poor 

Northumberland Tyne 

and Wear NHS 

Foundation Trust 

Yes Yes No No Yes Poor 

* Sustainable development management plan 

We have also signed up to the Core Strategy and Urban Core Plan for Newcastle 

and Gateshead to 2030. It is the first part of both councils’ Local Plan, containing an 

overall vision and spatial strategy to deliver economic prosperity and create lifetime 

neighbourhoods. The Plan covers the whole of the area within the administrative 

boundaries of Gateshead and Newcastle and includes strategic policies and specific 

policies for the Urban Core, Sub-Areas and sites.  

Further information is available at: 

• https://www.newcastle.gov.uk/planning-and-buildings/planning-policy/core-

strategy-and-urban-core-plan  

• https://www.newcastle.gov.uk/sites/default/files/wwwfileroot/planning-and-

buildings/planning-policy/sa_dec_2013.pdf 

 

Sustainability performance 

Organisation 

As noted, it is our duty to contribute towards the level of ambition set in 2014 of 

reducing the carbon footprint of the NHS, public health and social care system by 

34% (from 1990 baseline) which is equivalent to a 28% reduction from a 2013 

baseline by 2020. It is our aim to meet this target by reducing our carbon emissions 

by 10% by 2015 using 2017 as the baseline year. Here’s how we have done: 
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Commissioned activity 

Organisation Name Building 
energy 
use 

Building 
energy 
use per 
FTE 

Water Water 
use 
per 
FTE 

Percent 
high 
cost 
waste 

Waste 
cost 
increase 

The Newcastle upon Tyne 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  

0-10% 

decrease 
5.0 

>20% 

increase 
50 

>89% 

high 

cost 

0-20% 

decrease 

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust 

0-10% 

increase 
3.7 

0-20% 

decrease 
32 

>97% 

high 

cost 

0-20% 

increase 

North East Ambulance NHS 

Foundation Trust 

>10% 

decrease 
1.0 

0-20% 

decrease 
6 

<=75% 

high 

cost 

0-20% 

decrease 

Northumberland Tyne and Wear 

NHS Foundation Trust 

>10% 

decrease 
2.5 

0-20% 

increase 
27 

<=75% 

high 

cost 

0-20% 

increase 

FTE – Full time equivalent (staff) 

More information on these measures is available here: www.sduhealth.org.uk/policy-

strategy/reporting/organisational-summaries.aspx  

Travel 

We can improve local air quality and improve the health of our community by 

promoting active travel, to our staff, through our providers and to the patients and 

public that use the services we commission. This includes offering reduced cost 

public transport initiatives and developing a cycle to work scheme, which includes 

shower facilities and cycle parking where possible. We support a culture for active 

travel to improve staff wellbeing and reduce sickness. 

Category Mode 2015/16 2016/17 

Staff commute miles 110,471 143,132 

tCO2e 39.95 51.73 

The CCG actively manages business travel and encourages staff to use technology 

for meetings e.g. tele-conferencing and when travel is needed, staff are encouraged 

to travel together and to use the CCG’s electric vehicle. 
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Our resource use is as follows:  

Energy 

Resource 2015/16 2016/17 

Gas Use (kWh) 68,459 120,478 

tCO2e 14 25 

Oil Use (kWh) 0 0 

tCO2e 0 0 

Coal Use (kWh) 0 0 

tCO2e 0 0 

Electricity Use (kWh) 38,117 47,977 

tCO2e 22 25 

Green Electricity Use (kWh) 0 0 

tCO2e 0 0 

Total Energy CO2e 36 50 

 

Improving quality and safety                                        
The CCG has a clear mechanism in place to discharge its duty under Section 14R of 

the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to improve the quality of services, as described in 

section 5.2.4 of the CCG Constitution.   

The CCG meets regularly with providers to review performance, quality and safety. 

These meetings and associated work are reported for assurance to the CCG Quality, 

Safety and Risk Committee. This is a committee of the Governing Body; more 

information about the work of the committee is given in the Governance Statement. 

The aim of the CCG is to ensure that the delivery of the commissioned health 

services are based on a clinically led, patient focussed and evidence based 

approach.   

In addition to the formal quality assurance meetings, the CCG undertakes a rolling 

programme of commissioner visits each year to seek assurance that quality services 

are being delivered. The programme involves a small team of assessors, including a 

patient representative visiting provider services. The process is now firmly 

embedded within the CCG and is constantly evolving to meet needs as they arise. 

During the 2016/17 programme a total of 17 commissioner led assurance visits took 

place.  This is an increase in the number of visits from the 2015/16 programme, 
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when 12 visits took place. Out of the 17 visits which took place, 15 were planned as 

part of the programme and two visits were unannounced visits to local hospitals. 

Overall the visits have been very positive and demonstrated care which is being 

delivered to a high standard by professional and caring staff. The visits did not 

identify any significant concerns and where recommendations were made these 

were minor in nature. 

Support development of research and evaluation 

The CCG has supported the ‘Self-management planning for COPD’ research project. 

This is a collaboration between the CCG and academics at Newcastle University.  

This mixed methods research project aims to identify what factors contribute to 

improved self-management of the condition and potentially reduce re-admission to 

hospital. Findings from this project have contributed to the current evidence base to 

aid commissioning decisions and are also feeding into a larger research bid to build 

on the work that has already been completed within Newcastle Gateshead CCG. 

CCG governance development in relation to research and evidence 

The CCG developed and delivered a development session to the Governing Body 

discussing how to access and assess evidence. This built on work done within the 

CCG to develop a Research Strategy. The session focused on discussion around 

how the CCG can develop a process for the use of research evidence in the 

commissioning decision making process to help inform the redesign of services and 

commissioning policy. 

There is more information about the work of the CCG including the national ratings 

on My NHS www.nhs.uk/mynhs.  

 

Patient and Public Involvement  
Patient and public involvement and experience is at the heart of our work. Patient 

and public involvement is reported monthly to the CCG Executive Committee and to 

the CCG Governing Body, which meets in public.  

We enable our stakeholders to get involved by: 

• Having a robust involvement strategy and action plan 
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• Dedicated involvement contracts with Involve North East, the Health and 

Race Equality Forum and Deaflink to enable effective engagement with our 

communities 

• Effective relationships with the community and voluntary sector, existing 

patient and community groups 

• Appropriate communication and engagement mechanisms 

• Ensuring information provided in the required format and additional support 

needs are met 

• Dedicated ‘Get Involved’ section on the CCG website  

• MY NHS database  

 

On-going engagement and participation 
We engage on a regular basis with many community and voluntary sector 

organisations, local community groups and patient participation groups. 

These are some of the highlights of the patient and public involvement work that has 

been undertaken this year. We would like to take the opportunity to thank all of our 

partners and members of the public who have helped us this year.  

Existing groups across Newcastle and Gateshead include: 

• ACORN patient participation group  

• Newcastle West Patient Forum 

• Gateshead Patient, User, Carer and Public Involvement Group 

• Gateshead ‘Together for Health’ local engagement board 

• Newcastle Community Forum 

Individual Participation 

Older people  

So far, over 800 people have been engaged in the Care Home programme. This 

includes care home residents, care home staff, relatives, older people living within 

the community and carers. 22 care homes, representing 68% of the care homes in 

Gateshead have engaged with the Care Home Programme. 
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Self-care advocates 

A key focus during 2016/17 has been to engage with older people living in their own 

homes, who will need to use health and social care services within the next five to 

ten years.  

Our approach to connecting with the community has been through training older 

volunteers, known as self-care advocates, to engage with their own support 

networks.  

The programme has reached 300 people so far, and we are now ensuring it is 

sustainable through a ‘train the trainer’ programme.  

Patient engagement 

A survey was designed to discover the particular issues that people living with long- 

term conditions face and what they want to have in place to support them.  

Key themes from the engagement work have informed the CCG strategy for long- 

term conditions. 

Patient reference group 

The patient reference group collaborates with CCG staff to improve the development 

and operation of the year of care programme. The group have influenced the 

strategic approach of the long term condition strategy by describing what good care 

will look like for each of the five programmes of work: prevention, identification, 

supported self-management, proactive management and end of life care.  

 

Public Participation 

‘Together for Health’, Gateshead Local Engagement Board  

Meetings are held three times a year and members share experiences and views on 

various health topics. This year topics have included carers, sustainability and 

transformation plan (STP) and developing a patient reference group for community 

services. 
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Patient User Carer Public Involvement Group (PUCPI), ACORN and Newcastle West 

Patient Forum 

These patient groups meet on a regular basis and discuss relevant health topics.  

Areas that have discussed this year included Deciding Together, sustainability and 

transformation plan and relationships with individual GP practice participation 

groups. 

Newcastle Community Forum 

This forum represents specific groups with protected characteristics and people in 

minority communities with experiences of being marginalised.   

The forum also discussed ‘Deciding Together,’ personal health budgets, suicide 

prevention plans, mental health cards, GP letters for legal aid and sustainability and 

transformation plan. 

Gathering feedback on the draft Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) 

Between November 2016 and January 2017, we attended local community and 

patient groups and hosted a series of engagement events across the area, to share 

details of the draft plan with our stakeholders and to gather views on the content of 

the draft. The engagement process will inform any future consultation. 

CCG 2016 conference: Connected people, connected communities  

The conference took place in June and was attended by 150 representatives from 

Newcastle and Gateshead local authorities, primary care, secondary care, voluntary 

and community sector organisations and wider partners.  

Participants were asked to consider how their organisations could work to support 

the development of good social relationships and agree key actions that they could 

take forward.   

Engagement event - Have your say in shaping how we engage with you 

We hosted an engagement event in November where over 80 people from our 

patient groups, community forums and the community and voluntary sector attended. 

The focus of the day was to discuss the current structure of the existing patient, 

community and community and voluntary sector groups – how they are run, who 

attends them, frequency of the meetings etc., as well as explore how we can make a 

future structure more effective. 
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A report from the event will support the development of robust involvement and 

engagement structure across Newcastle and Gateshead.   

Healthwatch   

Newcastle Gateshead CCG has developed effective partnership working with both 

Healthwatch Newcastle and Healthwatch Gateshead. Throughout the year, we have 

taken part in various Healthwatch events to enable us to gather local intelligence 

from patients and the public on their experience of using our services and where 

improvements could be made. 

Insight and Feedback 

Stroke Pathway - New model of Care  

Following a comprehensive review of acute stroke care, a new service model was 

developed.  

The CCG, working with the Stroke Association engaged with patients and carers to 

understand the current experience of stroke survivors and their carers. They 

identified what the key issues are to be considered at each stage of the new model. 

The themes and issues identified would inform the monitoring of patient and carer 

experience, at post-implementation stage of the new model. 

All patients who had received medical support for a stroke at the Queen Elizabeth 

Hospital in the last 12 months were invited to tell us their experiences of the service 

and provide views on what they felt was needed, by attending focus groups and 

completing a survey. 

Living with COPD – Putting the voice of people at the heart of service delivery. 

The British Lung Foundation has been working with us to provide opportunities for 

people living with a long term lung condition to become more confident about 

managing their condition. Over 97 patients took part in a survey to review, redesign 

and support the implementation of a new service.   

End of Life Care in Newcastle - engagement with seldom heard groups 

We worked with colleagues from many organisations including Newcastle Carers, 

Marie Curie, St Oswald’s Hospice, Newcastle upon Tyne NHS Foundation Trust, 

Healthwatch, Skills for People, Deaflink, Health and Race Equality Forum (HAREF) 
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and the GP practices to gather views and expectations about end-of-life care, as well 

as asking people about their experiences of care. 

We talked to over 220 people from BME communities, who are deaf or hard-of-

hearing, registered as homeless, blind or visually impaired and those who live with a 

learning disability or difficulty. We also spoke to patients on the palliative care 

register. 

The results of the engagement will feed directly into the CCG’s end-of-life strategy 

and action plan which is looking to develop a new single pathway for end-of-life care. 

 

Reducing health inequality 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG complies with the Equality Act 2010, the Public 

Sector Equality Duty and the Health and Social Care Act 2012. We have 

demonstrated our commitment to taking Equality, Diversity and Human Rights into 

account in everything we do, whether that is commissioning services, employing 

people, developing policies, communicating, consulting or involving people in our 

work as evidenced below: 

Equality Duties 
The Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2)  

We have implemented the Equality Delivery System (EDS2) framework and have 

been using the tool to support the mainstreaming of equalities into all our core 

business functions to support us in meeting the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 

and to improve our performance for the community, patients, carers and staff with 

protected characteristics that our outlined within the Equality Act 2010. 

This has been an opportunity to raise equality in service commissioning and gain 

insight into the local population’s diverse health needs and we have reviewed and 

updated our Equality Objectives to reflect this. 

The Quality Safety and Risk (QSR) committee approved plans detailing actions we 

will take to ensure that individuals, communities and staff are treated equitably. 

Progress against these action plans is reported to the committee on a quarterly 

basis. 
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Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) 

In accordance with the Public Sector Equality Duty and the NHS Equality and 

Diversity Council agreeing measures to ensure employees from black and ethnic 

minority (BME) backgrounds have equal access to career opportunities and receive 

fair treatment in the workplace, the CCG has shown due regard to the Workforce 

Race Equality Standard (WRES). 

We have collated staff data as outlined within the updated WRES reporting template 

for 2016. We aim to improve workplace experiences and representation at all levels 

for black and minority ethnic staff. 

 

Equality Analysis 

Our Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Toolkit has been implemented into core 

business processes to provide a comprehensive insight into our local population, 

patients’ and staff’s diverse health needs.  

The tool covers all equality groups offered protection under the Equality Act 2010 

(Race, Disability, Gender, Age, Sexual Orientation, Religion/Belief, Marriage and 

Civil Partnership and Gender Re-assignment) in addition to Human Rights and 

Carers.  

Our EIA process ensures that we can consider the impact or effect of our policies, 

procedures and functions on the population we serve. For any negative impacts 

identified we will take immediate steps to deal with such issues as part of the action 

plan set out in the tool, to make sure equity of service delivery is available for all, as 

well as the opportunity to continuously monitor progress against challenges identified 

to monitor and reduce inequality for our local population. 

The tool also now includes checks in relation the Accessible Information Standard to 

aid compliance with the Standard when commissioning services to ensure that 

information is provided to all service users and patients in a way they can 

understand. 

Health inequalities 
 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG has regard to the need to reduce inequalities in 

accessing health services for our local population. 
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We understand our local population and local health needs, through our 

collaboration with our local authority partners in formulating the joint strategic needs 

assessments (JSNAs). We also use additional supporting data including local health 

profiles as well as qualitative data, through our local engagement initiatives which 

aim to engage hard to reach groups. 

The health of people in Newcastle upon Tyne is generally worse than the England 

average. Newcastle upon Tyne is one of the 20% most deprived districts/unitary 

authorities in England.  

About 27% (12,600) of children in Newcastle and 21% (7,200) of children who live in 

Gateshead are from low-income families. Life expectancy for both men and women 

is lower than the England average. 

We work in partnership with local NHS Foundation Trusts and the local councils, as 

well as local voluntary sector organisations and community groups to identify the 

needs of the diverse local community we serve, to improve health and healthcare for 

the local population.  

During 2016/17, through our Commissioning Support Unit, we have continued to 

work closely with other local NHS organisations to support regional working on 

Equality, Diversity and Human Rights. We have been awarded NHS Employers E&D 

Partner status for 2016/17.  

Governance 
Equality and Diversity is governed and reports into the Quality Safety and Risk 

(QSR) committee. The committee oversees our compliance with legislative, 

mandatory and regulatory requirements regarding equality and diversity, our delivery 

of national and regional diversity-related initiatives within the CCG, monitors 

progress against the Equality Strategy and supports the CCG’s achievement of 

equality and diversity objectives. 

A quarterly Governance Assurance Report is submitted to the QSR committee 

outlining relevant updates in relation to Equality, Diversity and Human Rights 

legislation. 
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Health and wellbeing strategy  
We work in close partnership with both Newcastle City Council and Gateshead 

Council and actively support the development and delivery of the joint health and 

wellbeing strategies. The Local Authority Directors of Public Health are in attendance 

at the CCG Governing Body and provide a progress report at each meeting. Through 

our work with them we have confirmed the CCG's contribution to the delivery of the 

joint health and wellbeing strategies. 

CCG Governing Body members are also members of the Health and Wellbeing 

Board in Gateshead and the Wellbeing for Life Board in Newcastle. In addition to 

regular attendance at the Boards throughout 2016/17 and participation in the full 

range of business, the CCG has brought specific issues for the consideration of the 

Boards including: 

• CCG Operational and Commissioning Plans 

• Northumberland, Tyne and Wear Sustainability and Transformation Plan 

(STP) 

• Arrangements for commissioning Primary Care Services 

• Cancer services 

• Personal Health Budgets 

• Learning Disability Health and Social Care services 

• Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) 

 

Summary of performance 
The service delivery and quality of the services we commission from our providers 

remains strong and are some of the best nationally. It is therefore not surprising that 

the Care Quality Commission (CQC) has rated all our main NHS providers as either 

‘outstanding’ or ‘good.’ In respect of General Practice (GP) provision we also have a 

number of practices assessed by CQC as ‘outstanding’ with most others being 

recognised as ‘good.’ However, we do face significant challenges ahead not only to 

maintain this level of strong performance but also to improve in it where possible, 

against a backdrop of significant financial and workforce pressures.  
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Mark Adams 

Accountable Officer  

23 May 2017  
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT  

Corporate Governance Report 

Members Report 

Member Practices 
 
The CCG is made up of 64 GP practices in Newcastle and Gateshead. We started 
the year with 65, but Falcon Medical Group and Thornfield Medical Group, both 
situated in Molineux Health Centre in Byker merged in 2016. The 64 practices are: 
 
Practice name Practice name 
108 Rawling Road Longrigg Medical Centre 

Avenue Medical Practice Metro Interchange Surgery  

Betts Avenue Medical Centre Millennium Family Practice 

Beacon View Medical Centre Newburn Surgery 

Benfield Park Medical Group Newcastle Medical Centre 

Bensham Family Practice Oldwell Surgery 

Bewick Road Surgery Oxford Terrace & Rawling Road Medical Group 

Biddlestone Health Group Parkway Medical Group 

Birtley Medical Group Pelaw Medical Centre 

Blaydon GP Practice & Minor Injuries / illness unit Ponteland Road Health Centre 

Bridges Medical Centre Primary Health Care Centre 

Broadway Medical Centre Prospect Medical Group 

Brunton Park Health Centre Regent Medical Centre  

Central Gateshead Medical Group Roseworth Surgery 

Chainbridge Medical Partnership Ryton Surgery 

Crawcrook Surgery Saville Medical Group 

Crowhall Medical Centre Second Street Surgery 

Cruddas Park Surgery St Anthony’s Health Centre 

Denton Park Medical Group St. Albans Medical Group 

Denton Turret Medical Centre Sunniside Surgery 

Dilston Medical Centre Teams Medical Practice 

Fell Cottage Surgery The Grove Medical Group 

Fell Tower Medical Centre The Medical Centre (Rowlands Gill) 
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Practice name Practice name 
Fenham Hall Medical Group The Park Medical Group 

Glenpark Medical Centre The Surgery (Osborne Road) 

Gosforth Memorial Medical Centre Thornfield Medical Group 

Grainger Medical Group incorporating Scotswood 
GP Practice 

Throckley Primary Care  

Grange Road Walker Medical Group  

Heaton Road Surgery West Road Medical Centre 

Holly Medical Group Westerhope Medical Group 

Hollyhurst Whickham Health Centre 

Holmside Medical Group Wrekenton Medical Group (incorporating The 
Croft and High Street Practices) 

 

The Chair of the CCG 
The Chair of the CCG from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 was Dr Mark Dornan, a 

GP in Gateshead. Dr Guy Pilkington, a GP in Newcastle was the Assistant Clinical 

Chair.  As planned, these roles were reversed from 1 April 2017; Dr Pilkington is now 

the Chair of the CCG and Dr Dornan is the Assistant Clinical Chair.  

Chief Officer 
Mark Adams is the Chief Officer and Accountable Officer of the CCG and has been 

in post from the CCG’s inception on 1 April 2015. 

Commissioning Forum 

The CCG Commissioning Forum comprises a nominated GP from each of the 64 GP 

practices which form the CCG membership. Its terms of reference require it to meet 

quarterly and not less than three times per calendar year. The commissioning forum 

met on four occasions during 2016/17, including the Annual Members Meeting in 

September 2016.  
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The CCG Governing Body 
The membership of the CCG Governing Body is set out in the CCG constitution. The 

composition of the Governing Body of the CCG during 2016/17 was as follows: 

Title Name 
Clinical Chair Dr Mark Dornan 

Assistant Clinical Chair Dr Guy Pilkington 

Chief Officer (Accountable officer) Mark Adams 

Lay member: Deputy Chair of the 
Governing Body 

Jeff Hurst 

Lay member: To lead on audit and conflict 
of interest matters 

Michael Burke 

Lay members: 
 

Paul Gertig 
Mandy Coppin (formerly Taylor) 
Margaret Stewart (from July 2016) 
Oliver Wood (from July 2016) 

Member practice representatives Dr Peter Ward  
Dr Alison Smith (to 31 March 2017) 
Sheinaz Stansfield 

Secondary care specialist doctor Bill Cunliffe 

Chief Finance and Operating Officer Joe Corrigan 

Executive Director of Nursing, Patient 
Safety and Quality 

Chris Piercy 

Medical Director Dr Neil Morris 

 Directors Jackie Cairns, Director of Strategy and Integration 
Jane Mulholland, Director of Operations and Delivery 
Julia Young, Director of Quality Development 

 In attendance (non-voting) Prof. Eugene Milne, Director of Public Health, 
Newcastle 
Carole Wood, Director of Public Health, Gateshead (to 
May 2016) 
Alice Wiseman, Director of Public Health, Gateshead 
(from June 2016) 
Jeffrey Pearson, Head of Corporate Affairs (to May 
2016) 
Pauline Fox, Head of Corporate Affairs (from June 
2016)  

The function of the Governing Body can be found in the governance statement.  
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Audit Committee 
The membership of the Audit Committee comprises the lay member who leads on 

audit and governance, at least one other lay member and one other member with the 

relevant skills and experience as nominated by the Governing Body. Audit 

Committee membership 2016/17 was: 

• Michael Burke, lay member for audit, remuneration and conflict of interest 

matters (Chair) 

• Jeff Hurst, Lay Member and Deputy Chair of the Governing Body 

• Mr Bill Cunliffe, secondary care clinician (nominated by the Governing Body) 

Joe Corrigan, Chief Finance and Operating Officer is the lead officer for the 

committee and is invited to all meetings. Mark Adams, Chief Officer, attends the 

committee at least annually.  

The function of the Audit Committee can be found in the governance statement.  

 

CCG staff 
Details of CCG staff are given in the remuneration and staff report section of this 

annual report.  

 

North of England Commissioning Support (NECS) 
Commissioning Support Units were introduced in the NHS as part of the 

commissioning reforms to provide commissioning support at scale to a number of 

CCGs under a service level agreement.  We have a service level agreement (SLA) in 

place with the North of England Commissioning Support service (NECS). NECS 

provide us with a range of commissioning support services, including, for example, 

communications, human resources management, business intelligence, information 

governance, financial and payment processes and management accounting.  

 

Register of Interests 
The CCG has arrangements in place for the effective management of conflicts of 

interest. Details of company directorships and other significant interests held by 
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members of the Governing Body, Executive committee and other CCG committees 

are recoded in the Register of Interests. The Register of Interests is available on the 

CCG website at: http://www.newcastlegatesheadccg.nhs.uk/publications/   

 

Personal data related incidents 
The CCG reported two data incidents to the Information Commissioners Officer 

during 2016/17.  

The first incident was reported on 1 August 2016. This was the accidental disclosure 

of staff sickness information to a neighbouring CCG. An e-mail from a NECS 

colleague to another CCG had an attachment that contained personal data relating 

to our employees. The ICO decided that no further action was necessary as this was 

an isolated incident, caused by human error and that the data was still within the 

NHS system, therefore any potential detriment would be minimal. The ICO was 

satisfied with the remedial action we had taken to prevent recurrence.  The CCG 

Chief Finance and Operating Officer apologised in person to the staff members 

whose sickness record had been disclosed.  

The second incident was reported on 2 August 2016. This incident was the 

accidental disclosure by the NECS CHC team of a deceased patient’s personal 

information to a patient with the same name and year of birth. The ICO decided that 

no further action was necessary because the information disclosed in the attachment 

did not contain personal data, as defined by the Data Protection Act 1998. The ICO 

was satisfied with the remedial action we had taken to prevent recurrence.  The 

senior nurse apologised in person to the people affected.   

 

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors 
Each individual who is a member of the CCG at the time the Members’ Report is 

approved confirms:  

• So far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 

the CCG’s auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the purposes of their 

audit report  
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• The member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to 

make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 

that the CCG’s auditor is aware of it 

 

Modern Slavery Act  

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG fully supports the Government’s objectives to 

eradicate modern slavery and human trafficking. As the CCG is not classed as a 

commercial organisation it does not meet the requirement for producing an annual 

Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement as set out in the Modern Slavery Act 

2015.  
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Statement of Accountable Officer’s 
Responsibilities  
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 

Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 

appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS England has 

appointed the Chief Officer to be the Accountable Officer of NHS Newcastle 

Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group.  

The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health 

Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical 

Commissioning Group Accountable Officer appointment letter.  They include 

responsibilities for:  

• The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable 

Officer is answerable 

• For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable 

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning 

Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the 

requirements of the Accounts Direction) 

• For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for 

taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities) 

• The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public 

Money 

• Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and 

economically (in accordance with Section 14Q of the National Health Service 

Act 2006 (as amended)) and with a view to securing continuous improvement 

in the quality of services (in accordance with Section14R of the National 

Health Service Act 2006 (as amended)) 

• Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H 

to 223J of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) 

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has 

directed each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year 
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financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. 

The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net 

expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply 

with the requirements of the Group Accounting Manual issued by the Department of 

Health and in particular to: 

• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the 

relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable 

accounting policies on a consistent basis 

• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis 

• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Group 

Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health have been followed, 

and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements; 

and 

• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the 

responsibilities set out under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), 

Managing Public Money and in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable 

Officer Appointment Letter. 

I also confirm that:  
 

• As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 

CCG’s auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have taken all 

the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant 

audit information and to establish that the CCG’s auditors are aware of that 

information 

• That the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 

understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the annual report 

and accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is fair, 

balanced and understandable  
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Mark Adams 

Accountable Officer  

23 May 2017 
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Governance Statement 

Introduction and context 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group is a body corporate 

established by NHS England on 1 April 2015 under the National Health Service Act 

2006 (as amended). 

The clinical commissioning group’s statutory functions are set out under the National 

Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). The CCG’s general function is arranging the 

provision of services for persons for the purposes of the health service in England.  

The CCG is, in particular, required to arrange for the provision of certain health 

services to such extent as it considers necessary to meet the reasonable 

requirements of its local population.   

As at 1 April 2017, the clinical commissioning group is not subject to any directions 

from NHS England issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act 

2006, nor has it been during 2016/17.  

 

Scope of responsibility  
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of 

internal control that supports the achievement of the clinical commissioning group’s 

policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for 

which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned 

to me in Managing Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out 

under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and in my Clinical 

Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 

I am responsible for ensuring that the Clinical Commissioning Group is administered 

prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, 

safeguarding financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for 

reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control within the clinical 

commissioning group as set out in this governance statement. 
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Governance arrangements and effectiveness 

The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework  
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b) states:  

“The main function of the Governing Body is to ensure that the group has made 

appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally accepted 

principles of good governance as are relevant to it.” 

The CCG has a constitution based on the Department of Health’s Model Template 

and it has been approved to take into account subsequent guidance.  

Commissioning Forum 
The Clinical Commissioning Group has a Commissioning Forum, comprising the 

elected members of each general practice within the group. This provides clinically-

led direction on areas of commissioning for health care services and is constituted of 

appointed practice representatives and other primary care representatives who will 

use the groups as vehicles for determining needs in relation to both patient services 

and practice development.   

The Commissioning Forum was operational throughout the 2016/17 financial year 

and has continued to operate after that period. In accordance with the terms of 

reference, meetings of Commissioning Forum are normally held quarterly, and not 

less than three times per financial year. The Commissioning Forum met on four 

occasions during 2016/17, including the Annual Members Meeting in September 

2016, in order to discharge the responsibilities as determined by the scheme of 

reservation and delegation and terms of reference. 

The Chair of the Commissioning Forum is selected by the members from the 

membership.  

The Commissioning Forum has determined to delegate the majority of the decision-

making responsibility to the Governing Body and its sub-committees. 

The 2016/17 attendance records for the Commissioning Forum are given in the 

following table:  
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Practice name Total/4 Practice name Total/4 
108 Rawling Road 0 Longrigg Medical Centre 3 
Avenue Medical Practice 4 Metro Interchange Surgery  3 
Betts Avenue Medical Centre 4 Millennium Family Practice 3 
Beacon View Medical Centre 3 Newburn Surgery 4 
Benfield Park Medical Group 4 Newcastle Medical Centre 3 
Bensham Family Practice 2 Oldwell Surgery 1 
Bewick Road Surgery 3 Oxford Terrace & Rawling Road 

Medical Group 3 

Biddlestone Health Group 2 Parkway Medical Group 4 
Birtley Medical Group 2 Pelaw Medical Centre 1 
Blaydon GP Practice & Minor 
Injuries / illness unit 0 Ponteland Road Health Centre 1 

Bridges Medical Centre 4 Primary Health Care Centre, Chopwell 3 
Broadway Medical Centre 4 Prospect Medical Group 4 
Brunton Park Health Centre 3 Regent Medical Centre  4 
Central Gateshead Medical Group 4 Roseworth Surgery 4 
Chainbridge Medical Partnership 3 Ryton Surgery 1 
Crawcrook Surgery 2 Saville Medical Group 4 
Crowhall Medical Centre 2 Second Street Surgery, Bensham 2 
Cruddas Park Surgery 4 St Anthony’s Health Centre 3 
Denton Park Medical Group 3 St. Albans Medical Group 1 
Denton Turret Medical Centre 4 Sunniside Surgery 3 
Dilston Medical Centre 1 Teams Medical Practice 3 
Fell Cottage Surgery 2 The Grove Medical Group 4 
Fell Tower Medical Centre 1 The Medical Centre (Rowlands Gill) 2 
Fenham Hall Medical Group 3 The Park Medical Group 4 
Glenpark Medical Centre 4 The Surgery (Osborne Road) 2 
Gosforth Memorial Medical Centre 4 Thornfield Medical Group 4 
Grainger Medical Group 
incorporating Scotswood GP 
Practice 

4 
Throckley Primary Care  

3 

Grange Road, Ryton 0 Walker Medical Group  4 
Heaton Road Surgery 4 West Road Medical Centre 4 
Holly Medical Group 2 Westerhope Medical Group 4 
Hollyhurst 1 Whickham Health Centre 3 
Holmside Medical Group 

4 
Wrekenton Medical Group 
(incorporating The Croft and High 
Street Practices) 

3 
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Governing Body 
The Governing Body is constituted in accordance with the Health and Social Care 

Act 2012 and the National Health Service (Clinical Commissioning Groups) 

Regulations 2012. The terms of reference for the Governing Body are set out in the 

CCG constitution and include the membership.  

During the year 2016/17 the Governing Body met on six occasions both in private 

and public. 

Agendas are structured to deal with public and patient involvement, quality, finance, 

performance, strategic, governance and public health issues. The arrangements 

meet the requirements of best practice guidance in respect of risk management and 

ensure that a strong accountability framework has been established. They reflect the 

public service values of accountability, probity and openness and specify as 

Accountable Officer my responsibility for ensuring that these values are met within 

the Clinical Commissioning Group. 

Members of the Governing Body have undertaken a process of self-assessment.  

The outcome was presented to members and discussed in private session in July 

2016.  

A self-assessment of effectiveness is to be undertaken in spring 2017, the results of 

which will inform the 2017/18 Governing Body development programme.  

Attendance records for CCG Governing Body and committees 
The 2016/17 attendance records for the Governing Body and committees are given 

in the following tables.  
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Dr Mark Dornan Clinical Chair 1 6/6     9/12 

Dr Guy Pilkington Assistant Clinical Chair 2 5/6     10/12 

Mark Adams Chief Officer 3 5/6 1/1    9/12 

Jeff Hurst Deputy Lay Chair 4 6/6 6/6  10/11 2/2  

Michael Burke Lay member for Audit 5 6/6 6/6   1/2  

Paul Gertig Lay member 6/6  6/6 4/8 1/2  
Mandy Coppin 
(formerly Taylor) Lay member 6 3/6  2/2 8/11 2/2  

Margaret Stewart Lay member (from July 
2016) 7 5/5  4/4    

Oliver Wood Lay member (from July 
2016) 3/5      

Dr Alison Smith Member Practice 
Representative 5/6      

Sheinaz Stansfield Member Practice 
Representative 4/6      

Dr Peter Ward  Member Practice 
Representative 4/6      

Mr Bill Cunliffe Secondary Care 
specialist doctor 4/6 6/6 4/6   7/12 

Joe Corrigan Chief Finance and 
Operating Officer 6/6     10/12 

Chris Piercy 
Executive Director of 
Nursing, Patient Safety 
and Quality  

6/6  4/6   10/12 

Dr Neil Morris Medical Director  6/6  6/6 10/11  9/12 

Dr Steve Kirk Clinical Director      10/12 

Dr Steve Summers Clinical Director       8/12 

Jackie Cairns Director of Strategy and 
Integration 5/6     12/12 

Jane Mulholland Director of Operations 
and Delivery 3/6  3/6   9/12 

Julia Young  Director of Quality 
Development 3/6     9/12 

Notes: 
1 Chair of the Governing Body throughout 2016/17 

2 Chair of the Executive Committee throughout 2016/17 

3 The Chief Officer is required to attend the Audit Committee once per year 

4 Chair of the Primary Care Joint Committee 

5 Chair of the Audit Committee 

6 Chair of the Remuneration Committee 

7 Chair of the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee (from September 2016 onwards)
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We have continued to operate with a committee structure which reflects guidance 

and best practice, including an Audit Committee incorporating the business of the 

Finance and Performance Committee, a Remuneration Committee, a Quality, Safety 

and Risk Committee, a Primary Care Joint Committee and an Executive Committee.  

Terms of reference have been agreed for these committees which support the 

organisation in the delivery of effective governance. Lay membership of committees 

is set out in the terms of reference. From 1 April 2016 to 30 June 2016 there were 

four lay members. From July 2016 onwards there were six lay members. Agreement 

of which lay members attended which committees was revised from September 

onwards.  

The organisational structure including key committees is set out below. 

 

 

Description of the established Governing Body committees 
The principal role of each of the Governing Body committees is set out below.  The 

Governing Body Committees have authority under the Scheme of Delegation to 

establish sub-committees or sub-groups to enable them to fulfill their role.  

Each of the Governing Body committees has agreed terms of reference and each 

committee is authorised by the Governing Body to pursue any activity within their 

terms of reference and within the scheme of reservation and delegation. 

 

Audit Committee 
(Including the 
Finance and 
Performance 
Committee) 

 

 
Remuneration 

Committee 

 
Quality, Safety and 

Risk Committee 

 
Executive 

Committee 

 
Primary Care 
Committee 

 
Commissioning Forum 

 
Governing Body 
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Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee was operational throughout the 2016/17 financial year and has 

continued to operate after that period. In accordance with the terms of reference, 

meetings of the Audit Committee are normally held bi-monthly, and not less than five 

times per financial year. The Audit Committee met on six occasions during 2016/17.  

In line with the requirements of the NHS Audit Committee Handbook and NHS 

Codes of Conduct and Accountability, the committee provides the organisation with 

an independent and objective review of their financial systems, financial information 

and compliance with laws, guidance, and regulations governing the NHS.  The Audit 

Committee also encompasses the functions of the Finance and Performance 

Committee.  

The committee’s cycle of business includes review of the Clinical Commissioning 

Group Assurance Framework and corporate risk register. The committee is a non-

executive committee of the Governing Body and has no executive powers, other 

than those specifically delegated in its terms of reference.  

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are described in a document separate to 

the CCG’s constitution and are available on the CCG’s website. 

The Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, provides an annual report of 

its work to the Governing Body. The most recent report available covers 2016/17. 

The principal purpose of the report is to give the Governing Body an assurance as to 

the work carried out to support the Accountable Officer’s review of the internal 

control arrangements. The committee’s cycle of business enables the Audit 

Committee to carry out its key objectives necessary to support its assurances 

regarding the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal controls.  

During the year the CCG Auditor Panel ran a procurement exercise to appoint the 

external auditors for the period April 2017 to March 2022.  The winner bidder was 

approved by the Governing Body and Mazars (the current external auditor of the 

CCG) has been awarded a three year contract with an option to extend for a further 

two years. 
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Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee was operational throughout the 2016/17 financial year 

and has continued to operate after that period. In accordance with the terms of 

reference, meetings of the Remuneration Committee will be held as and when 

required, but not less than once per financial year. The Remuneration Committee 

met on two occasions during 2016/17.  

The Remuneration Committee is established to advise/recommend to the Governing 

Body the appropriate remuneration and terms of service for the Chief Officer and 

other staff paid through the Very Senior Manager Pay Framework. The committee 

also advises/recommends to the Governing Body remuneration for the role of chair, 

remuneration and terms of service of any independent lay members and reviews any 

business cases for early retirement and redundancy. The committee’s terms of 

reference are described in a document separate to the CCG’s constitution and are 

available on the CCG’s website. 

Quality, Safety and Risk Committee 
The Quality, Safety and Risk Committee was operational throughout the 2016/17 

financial year and has continued to operate after that period. In accordance with the 

terms of reference, meetings of the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee will be held 

not less than six times per financial year. The Quality, Safety and Risk Committee 

met on six occasions during 2016/17. 

The Quality, Safety and Risk Committee assists the Governing Body in its duty to 

secure continuous improvement in the quality of services, improve the quality of 

primary medical services and promote research and use of research. It provides 

assurance to the governing body about the quality, safety and risks of the services 

being commissioned, and the overall risks to the organisation’s strategic and 

operational plans.  

The committee’s terms of reference are described in a document separate to the 

CCG’s Constitution and are available on the CCG’s website. 

Significantly, during the year through its cycle of business, the Quality, Safety and 

Risk Committee and its associated sub-committee has considered the following 

issues: 
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• Quality monitoring reports on provider commissioned services, including the 
reporting of serious untoward incidents and never events 

• Healthcare acquired infections 

• Provision of nursing home care  

• Risk Management Strategy and Governance Framework 

• Information governance  

 

Never Events are defined as serious, largely preventable patient safety incidents that 

should not occur when the available preventative measures have been implemented. 

During 2016/17, 13 Never Events were reported to the CCG by our providers. Of 

these, 11 were in services commissioned by NGCCG and two were in specialised 

services commissioned by NHS England. Nine of these Never Events happened to 

Newcastle Gateshead CCG patients. 

Whenever a ‘Never Event’ occurs, it is important that lessons are learned and 

embedded into practice in order to reduce the likelihood of reoccurrence. The CCG 

is responsible for overseeing this process, on behalf of the population of Newcastle 

and Gateshead, and discharge this duty by working with the provider organisations. 

A ‘Never Event’ development session was held with the CCG Governing Body during 

2016/17 to provide assurance that investigation of, and learning from, Never Events 

is robust. 

Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee was operational throughout the 2016/17 financial year and 

has continued to operate after that period. In accordance with the terms of reference, 

meetings of the Executive Committee will normally be at least monthly, and not less 

than eight times per financial year. The Executive Committee met on 12 occasions 

during 2016/17. 

The Executive Committee is a management committee which supports the CCG, its 

Governing Body and the Accountable Officer in the discharge of their functions. It 

assists the Governing Body in its duties to promote a comprehensive health service, 

reduce inequalities and promote innovation. Its remit includes development and 

implementation of strategy, monitoring and delivery of delegated duties, operational, 

financial, contractual and clinical performance as well as ensuring the coordination 
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and monitoring of risks and internal controls. It has authority to make decisions as 

set out within its terms of reference and the CCG’s scheme of delegation. 

Primary Care Joint Committee 
The Primary Care Joint Committee of the CCG is a joint committee with NHS 

England established to support joint commissioning of primary medical services for 

the people of Newcastle and Gateshead. The committee is established as a 

committee of the Governing Body. 

The role of the Primary Care Joint Committee is to carry out the functions relating to 

the commissioning of primary medical services under section 83 of the NHS Act 

(2006) (except those relating to individual GP performance management, which have 

been reserved to NHS England) and such CCG functions under sections 3 and 3A of 

the NHS Act (2006) as have been delegated to the joint committee.  

In accordance with the terms of reference, meetings of the Primary Care Joint 

Committee will be held not less than four times per financial year. The Primary Care 

Joint Committee met on 11 occasions during 2016/17. 

This committee has been replaced by the Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

from April 2017 because the CCG has successfully applied to NHS England for 

delegated responsibility to commission primary care medical services. The expanded 

role, responsibilities and membership of the committee from April 2017 are reflected 

in revised terms of reference for the Primary Care Commissioning Committee.  

 

UK Corporate Governance Code 
As an NHS body we are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance 

Code. However, we have reported on our corporate governance arrangements by 

drawing on best practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate 

Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the clinical commissioning group 

and best practice. 

For the financial year ended 31 March 2017, and up to the date of signing this 

statement, we had regard to the provisions set out in the code, and applied the 

principles of the code. 
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Discharge of Statutory Functions 
The arrangements put in place by the clinical commissioning group and explained 

within the Corporate Governance Framework were developed with on-going expert 

external legal input, to ensure compliance with the all relevant legislation. That legal 

advice also informed the matters reserved for Membership Body and Governing 

Body decision and the scheme of delegation. 

In light of the Harris Review, the clinical commissioning group has reviewed all of the 

statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 

(as amended) and other associated legislative and regulations. As a result, I can 

confirm that the clinical commissioning group is clear about the legislative 

requirements associated with each of the statutory functions for which it is 

responsible, including any restrictions on delegation of those functions. 

Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead director. 

Directorate structures are periodically reviewed alongside the service agreement 

with the Commissioning Support Unit to ensure as far as possible the necessary 

capability and capacity to undertake all of the clinical commissioning group’s 

statutory duties. 

 

Risk Management arrangements and effectiveness  
A Risk Management Strategy is in place which takes into account current guidance 

on risk management best practice and incorporates guidance provided by ISO 

31000:2009 (formerly AZ/NZ Standard 4360:2004) and the former National Patient 

Safety Agency in its approach to assessing risk. 

The Risk Management Strategy sets out the CCG’s approach to the assessment and 

management of clinical and non-clinical risk in fulfilment of our overall objective to 

commission high quality and safe services. It provides guidance for the systematic 

and effective management of risk. Key elements of the Risk Management Strategy 

include: 

• A clear statement of Governing Body and individual accountability for delivery 

of the strategy 

• Clear principles, aims and objectives of the risk management process 
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• A clearly defined process for delivering the strategy including an 

implementation plan to ensure that the strategy and risk management 

awareness is communicated to all staff 

• Details of the approach to be undertaken to assess and report risk 

• An agreed process for reporting, managing, analysing and learning from 

adverse events supported by a ‘fair blame’ culture and approach 

• Confirmation of the arrangements for reporting risk through the risk register 

Risk is identified and embedded in the organisation via a number of mechanisms 

including the incident reporting system which identifies the risks that have already (or 

nearly) occurred from incidents or near misses; through our strategic planning 

system which ensures that all organisational objectives are rated for risks to 

achievement of delivery; and in our performance management system which rates all 

objectives for risk to delivery. In addition all Governing Body and committee reports 

are assessed for equality impact. 

Initial risks are rated according to impact and likelihood. Controls and assurances 

are then identified to ensure risks are being managed and mitigated. Residual risk 

ratings are then agreed and recorded, with a review date. The risk management 

policy sets out the arrangements for the escalation of risk. 

The Governing Body assurance framework is reviewed by the Audit Committee and 

presented to the Governing Body for approval at regular intervals throughout the 

year. It remains under active review as it enables the Governing Body to be sighted 

on the risks to the delivery of the organisation’s principal objectives and to ensure 

that effective controls and assurance are in place.  

 

Capacity to handle risk 
As Accountable Officer I have overall responsibility for: 

• Ensuring the implementation of an effective risk management strategy, 

including effective risk management systems and internal controls 

• The development of the corporate governance and assurance framework 

• Meeting all the statutory requirements and ensuring positive performance 

towards our strategic objectives 

 Page 65   



Each of the directors of the CCG is responsible for: 

• Co-ordinating operational risk in their specific areas in accordance with the 

risk management strategy 

• Ensuring that all areas of risk are assessed appropriately and action taken to 

implement improvements 

• Ensuring that staff under their management are aware of their risk 

management responsibilities in relation to the risk management strategy 

• Incorporating risk management as a management technique within the 

performance management arrangements for the organisation 

All members of staff are aware of their responsibilities in relation to the risk 

management strategy and policy. They have received training in relation to 

identifying, reporting, recording and managing risks. This ensures that risk is seen as 

the responsibility of all members of staff and not just senior managers. 

 

Risk assessment 
Risk is assessed in accordance with the processes and procedures set out in our 

Risk Management Policy. 

Risk is identified and embedded in the organisation via a number of mechanisms 

including a risk register which identifies current and prospective risks to the CCG. 

Risks were identified in relation to all of the corporate objectives set for 2016/17, but 

with the exception of one (identified below) none of these risks were considered to 

be major. There have been no risks identified in relation to compliance with our 

licence. 

The following in-year and future risks have been identified: 

i. In-year risks  

In our 2015/16 annual report we identified two future risks.  

• The Gateshead Care Home Vanguard project was at risk of non-delivery 

because funding had not been secured. The funding was subsequently 

secured and the Vanguard programme has progressed successfully this 
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year, as reported in this CCG annual report. It continues to be supported 

with non-recurrent funding from NHS England.  

 

• The other potential risk identified at the start of the year related to the 

delivery of the three core elements or ‘triple aim’ of the Sustainability and 

Transformation Plan (STP) i.e. to improve health and wellbeing and 

maintain care and quality, underpinned by financial sustainability. As 

described in this annual report, there has been significant work undertaken 

with partners throughout 2016/17 to develop the Northumberland, Tyne 

and Wear and North Durham STP. This continues to be a challenging 

programme of work, with four key themes of prevention and wellbeing, 

optimising the use of the acute sector, developing communities and 

neighbourhoods and improving mental health services.  

The major risk to the CCG throughout 2016/17 related to meeting the 

statutory financial duties and achieving the control total set by NHS England.  

• The cost pressures arising from Continuing Healthcare (CHC) including 

the high costs of packages has been identified as a high risk for the 

CCG throughout the year. The risk rating was reviewed to medium in 

March 2016 as steps taken by the CCG began to take effect. It remains 

under review.  

 

• A demanding efficiency programme through improving quality, 

innovation, productivity and prevention (QIPP) has been in place 

throughout the year, developed and implemented in close collaboration 

with member practices and partner NHS organisations. This achieved 

savings in excess of £10m. The closing financial position of the CCG is 

reported elsewhere in this annual report and in detail in the annual 

accounts. 

 

ii. Future risks 

The requirement to meet statutory financial duties and the control total set by 

NHS England remains a key risk going forward as increasing pressures on 

the CCG finances continue, particularly from demographic pressures. In 
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2017/18 QIPP plans exceed the £34m required to achieve the CCG control 

total, as agreed with NHS England.  

Capacity, workload and resilience in primary care: there is a risk that 

increasing pressures on GP practices may result in the CCG being unable to 

commission sufficient primary care to transform services to provide the best 

care possible to the population of Newcastle and Gateshead. Investment in 

line with the GP Five Year Forward View is in place to mitigate this risk and 

position the CCG to commission access to primary care that meets health 

needs.  

 

Other sources of assurance  

Internal Control Framework 
A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the 

clinical commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives.  It 

is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks 

being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 

efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control allows risk to 

be managed to a reasonable level rather than eliminating all risk; it can therefore 

only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level 

rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it 

can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  

The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify 

and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of the 

clinical commissioning group, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised 

and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 

and economically.  

A system of internal control has been in place continuously in the clinical 

commissioning group for the year ended 31 March 2017, which continues to be 

developed as the organisation matures.   
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The Internal Audit service is an important aspect of assurance on the system of 

internal control through a risk based programme of work. This provides assurance on 

key systems of control within the CCG through formal reporting to Audit Committee. 

The Head of Internal Audit also has direct access to the Audit Committee Chair as 

required.  

Statutory and mandatory training has been undertaken by all members of staff during 

2016/17, including compliance with health and safety requirements and information 

governance requirements. The CCG is committed to a process of continuing 

professional development, directed through the formal appraisal system. 

The CCG has a range of policies in place which contribute to the system of internal 

control. The three policy areas are corporate, human resources and information 

governance with a suite of standard operating procedures to support them. Policies 

are reviewed and revised on a regular basis determined by their revision date. 

Annual audit of conflicts of interest management  
The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for CCGs 

(published June 2016) requires CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of 

conflicts of interest management. To support CCGs to undertake this task, NHS 

England has published a template audit framework.  

The CCG has carried out the annual internal audit of conflicts of interest. The 

outcome is an assurance rating of ‘good. ’ The areas identified as requiring 

improvement were to ensure that potential conflicts of interests are identified, 

actioned and documented before agendas and papers are circulated and to ensure 

that where a conflict is noted the action to mitigate the conflict is accurately recorded. 

This audit report was issued in mid-May. The implementation of the 

recommendations will be overseen by the Audit Committee. 

Data Quality 
We receive data on quality, performance, finance and contracts which brings 

together the key strands of provider management responsibility. This ensures that no 

single aspect of this element of business is seen in isolation and provides an explicit 

link between finance, quality and performance issues. 

 Page 69   



Data are also received in relation to human resources, statutory and mandatory 

training and freedom of information requests which inform the governing body of 

progress and issues in those areas. 

The Governing Body considers the data received to be of an acceptable standard. 

Information governance 
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by 

which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular 

personal identifiable information. The NHS Information Governance Framework is 

supported by an information governance toolkit and the annual submission process 

provides assurances to the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and to 

individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and 

effectively. 

We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information governance 

systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate information.  

We have established an information governance management framework and are 

developing information governance processes and procedures in line with the 

information governance toolkit. We have ensured all staff undertake annual 

information governance training and have implemented a staff information 

governance handbook to ensure staff are aware of their information governance 

roles and responsibilities. 

There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of serious 

incidents. We have developed information risk assessment and management 

procedures and continue to develop our systems to fully embed an information risk 

culture throughout the organisation against identified risks. 

The information governance agenda is heard at the Quality, Safety and Risk 

Committee which reports to the Governing Body. The Caldicott Guardian and the 

senior information risk owner also play an important role in maintaining a robust 

approach to information governance 

The information governance toolkit has been provided by NHS Digital (formerly 

HSCIC) to support performance monitoring of progress on information governance in 

the NHS.  The CCG has published the information governance toolkit and has been 
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assessed as achieving 73% (Satisfactory) for Version 14 (2016/17), which included 

full compliance with the requirement for information governance training.  

We comply with our statutory duty to respond to requests for information. During the 

year we received 280 requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  All were 

responded to within the statutory timescales. 

Business Critical Models 
We have a Business Continuity Management Plan, which was formally approved by 

the Governing Body in September 2016. We do not have any business critical 

models. 

Third party assurances 
The CCG relies on several external support services providers in respect of some of 

its business functions, including the North of England Commissioning Support 

(NECS), the NHS Shared Business Service (SBS), Electronic Staff Records (ESR) 

(McKesson) and the NHS Business Services Authority (BSA).   

These organisations provide service auditor reports as part of the evidence of 

assurance on their internal system of controls as required by their customers. In 

addition, Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust provides the CCG with its 

payroll service. An assurance letter is provided to the CCG at the year-end which 

summarises the internal audit work carried out on the controls reporting the 

outcomes of such audits.  

CCGs receive periodic Service Audit Reports (SARs), prepared in accordance with 

guidance set out in the International Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 

and 3402. These reports describe the controls operated by NECS within the scope of 

the report and detail the outcome of testing over a period of time.   

During 2016/17 SARs were received in respect of the following key business 

functions within NECS that supported the CCG: 

• Accounts Payable  

• Accounts Receivable 

• Payroll 

• Treasury and Cash Management 

• Financial Ledger 
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• Financial Reporting 

• Business Information Quality  

• Information Technology  

• Information Governance 

 

The reports were considered at the Audit Committee. Whist the committee noted 

instances of exception in the applications of the controls within NECS, the committee 

concluded that these were not of a material nature or so fundamental to the integrity 

of the controls environment to affect the veracity of the CCG’s annual reporting. 

Control Issues 
Significant control issues are those issues that might prejudice the achievement of 

priorities, undermine the integrity or reputation of the CCG and/or wider NHS, made 

it harder to resist fraud or other misuse of resources, have a material impact on the 

accounts or put national security of data integrity at risk.  

As reported above, in the members report, the CCG has reported two data incidents 

to the Information Commissioners Office during 2016/17. However, there are no 

significant control issues currently facing the CCG. 

 

Review of economy, efficiency & effectiveness of the use of 
resources 
The CCG has well-developed internal systems and processes in place for managing 

resources with regard to economy, efficiency and the effective use of resources.  

Internal systems and processes are underpinned by the governance structure that 

includes the Audit Committee, with terms of reference as noted above.   

All clinical commissioning groups in England are subject to a comprehensive annual 

assessment which is led by NHS England. This examines key components and 

considers the strengths, challenges and areas for improvement before applying a 

headline rating of outstanding, good, requires improvement or inadequate. During 

2016/17 we learnt that our assessment for the previous year was rated as 

‘outstanding’.  
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NHS England publishes the CCG assessment outcomes on My 

NHS www.nhs.uk/mynhs . The latest available results (2016/17 quarter 2) show the 

CCG Quality of Leadership Indicator rated as ‘green star.’  It is planned that NHS 

England will make the year-end Quality of Leadership Indicator available from July 

2017 at www.nhs.uk/service-search/scorecard/results/1175.  

The Integrated Delivery Report (IDR) is presented at the Finance and Performance 

section of each meeting of the Audit Committee, and is also presented and 

discussed at the Executive Committee and the Governing Body.  From a more 

operational perspective, the Corporate Management Team meetings include a 

Finance and Sustainability group.  

The CCG Governing Body approved a balanced budget for the financial year 

2016/17, meeting all of the national financial planning assumptions. The requirement 

for delivery of additional cost savings via QIPP programmes increased in 2016/17 as 

a result of a range of factors including activity pressures, NHS England’s 

requirement for 1% non-recurrent to remain uncommitted and for specific 

developments to be funded from growth e.g. GPIT. The CCG had an agreed 

financial sustainability plan in place from the start of 2016/17 including a £14m QIPP 

efficiency saving plan to support the achievement of a planned surplus of £8.8m.  

This included a strong focus on the intelligence available via the ‘Right Care’ 

initiative which supports CCGs to identify opportunities to reduce cost and improve 

value/quality in the services they commission. 

Lead directors had agreed key roles in the implementation of the plans and the 

refinement of financial sustainability plans continued to be led by them.  

Member practices continue to be crucial to delivering our local efficiency savings, 

through tackling variation and ensuring ‘Right Care’ principles are in place. Practices 

are supported by named CCG staff who undertook regular practice visits throughout 

the year to review performance against specific practice action plans addressing 

these key issues. The CCG also commissions prescribing support staff to work in 

practices to facilitate the efficient and effective use of resources. 

We have continued our detailed review of costs incurred against contracts 

throughout the year. Contract management meetings were supported by detailed 

reporting showing actual activity and cost against planned levels across all points of 
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delivery and this was supported by more detailed analysis where there was 

significant variance to plan. Internal meetings such as the Finance Sustainability 

Group were used to link contract discussions with the practice liaison work. 

It is important that our financial reporting supports collective and comprehensive 

assurance on patient safety, quality and performance which is critical to ensuring 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of CCG resources. Our ‘Integrated 

Delivery Report’ is the vehicle for corporate reporting throughout the organisation 

and crucially gives visibility and enables triangulation of patient safety, quality 

performance and financial matters arising from commissioned services. 

Delegation of functions 
The CCG currently contracts with a number of external organisations for the 

provision of back office services and functions and as such has established an 

internal control system to gain assurance from these. These external services 

include: 

• The provision of Oracle financial system and financial accounting support 

from NHS Shared Business Services. The use of NHS Shared Business 

Services is mandated by NHS England for all CCGs and is fundamental in 

producing NHS England group financial accounts through the use of an 

integrated financial ledger system 

• The provision of financial accounting services from the North of England 

Commissioning Support Unit (NECS) 

• The provision of payroll services from Northumbria Healthcare NHS 

Foundation Trust 

• The provision of the ESR payroll systems support from McKesson 

Assurance on the effectiveness of the controls is received in part from annual service 

audit reports and internal audit assurance reports from the relevant service 

providers. The outcomes from these audits are reported to the Audit Committee.  

Counter fraud arrangements 
Our counter fraud activity plays a key part in deterring risks to the organisation’s 

financial viability and probity. An annual counter fraud plan is agreed by the Audit 
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Committee, which focuses on the deterrence, prevention, detection and investigation 

of fraud. 

Through our contract with Audit One, we have counter fraud arrangements in place 

that comply with the NHS Protect Standards for Commissioners: Fraud, Bribery and 

Corruption. 

• An Accredited Counter Fraud Specialist is contracted to undertake counter 

fraud work proportionate to identified risks    

• The CCG Audit Committee receives a report against each of the Standards 

for Commissioners at least annually. There is executive support and direction 

for a proportionate proactive work plan to address identified risks   

• A member of the governing body is proactively and demonstrably responsible 

for tackling fraud, bribery and corruption 

• Appropriate action is taken regarding any NHS Protect quality assurance 

recommendations 

There were no incidents of fraud reported or revealed during 2016/17.  
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Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the clinical 

commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and 

objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the clinical commissioning 

group’s system of risk management, governance and internal control. The Head of 

Internal Audit concluded that:  

‘From my review of your systems of internal control, I am providing substantial 

assurance that the system of internal control has been effectively designed to 

meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are being consistently 

applied.’ 

• During the year, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports:  

Area of Audit Level of Assurance Given  

Risk Management, Governance Arrangements and the Assurance 
Framework (NGA1617/12) 

Substantial 

Strategic Planning (NGA1617/01) Substantial  

Non-financial Performance Management  (NGA1617/07) Substantial 

QIPP Assurance (NGA1617/08) Good 

Conflicts of Interest (NGA1617/09) Good 

Contract monitoring (NGA1617/10) Substantial 

Information Governance Toolkit (NGA1617/14) Substantial 

Key financial controls (NGA1617/15) Substantial 

Service reconfiguration (NGA1516/09) (deferred from 2015/16) Substantial  

Clinical engagement (NGA1617/02) Substantial  

Safeguarding Arrangements (NGA1617/03) Substantial  

Quality Improvement (NGA1617/04) Substantial  

Medicines Management (NGA1617/05) Substantial 

Patient and Public Engagement and consultation (NGA1617/06) Substantial  

Vanguard Arrangements (NGA1617/11) Substantial 

Delivery Against SLAs (NGA1617/13) Not yet finalised  
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Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and 
internal control 
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the 

work of the internal auditors, executive managers and clinical leads within the clinical 

commissioning group who have responsibility for the development and maintenance 

of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information available 

to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in 

their annual audit letter and other reports.  

Our assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of 

controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its 

principles objectives have been reviewed.  

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Governing Body, the Audit 

Committee and the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee, and a plan to address 

weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

The CCG has worked closely with NHS England throughout the year, including 

participating in the quarterly assurance programme of work.   

In particular, there are some key processes that the CCG uses throughout the year 

to be assured that the system of internal control is effective: 

i. The Governing Body 

The Governing Body assurance framework has been regularly reviewed by the 

Governing Body. The Governing Body also receives minutes from the Executive 

Committee and the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee who have responsibility for 

the approval of new and updated policies throughout the year. 

ii. The Audit Committee 

The annual internal audit plan, as approved by the Audit Committee, enables the 

CCG to be reassured that key internal financial controls and other matters relating to 

risk are regularly reviewed. The committee has reviewed the internal and external 

audit reports and has kept the assurance framework under review throughout the 

year. 
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iii. The Quality, Safety and Risk Committee: 

This committee provides assurance to the Governing Body that there are adequate 

controls in place to ensure the CCG is delivering on its statutory and non-statutory 

clinical duties and responsibilities. The Head of Corporate Affairs, as lead manager 

for risk and corporate governance, provides bi-monthly reports to the Quality, Safety 

and Risk Committee and the Audit Committee  

iv. Review of the CCG Constitution 

The CCG Constitution has undergone review, but has not been amended during 

2016/17. An amendment effective from 1 April 2017 was approved by NHS England 

in respect of delegated responsibility for Primary Care Commissioning. A revised 

CCG Constitution was therefore published on 3 April 2017.   

v. Assurances of outsourced services  

Payroll: The CCG payroll service is provided by Northumbria Healthcare NHS 

Foundation Trust. No issues of concern have been raised during the year. 

vi. North of England Commissioning Support Unit (NECS) 

The CCG relies on a range of support from NECS and it is important that the CCG 

receives adequate assurances from the commissioning support unit in respect of its 

controls environment.  

In a management report to the CCG, a review of NECS internal controls identified 

some minor areas of control weakness. This was considered by the Audit Committee 

and upon review concluded that they did not pose a material risk to the integrity of 

reporting. 

Data security  

We have adopted and implemented the Department of Health guidance, ‘Checklist 

for Reporting, Managing and Investigating Information Governance Serious 

Untoward Incidents’. The organisation has a standard operating procedure in place 

for the reporting of level three information governance incidents to the Information 

Commissioner. This procedure outlines the scope of responsibilities and details the 

reporting procedures to be used in the event of a data security breach.  
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Conclusion 
My review confirms therefore that there is a sound system of internal control in place 

across NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG. 

In accordance with the statutory duties for clinical commissioning groups, as laid 

down in the Health and Social Care Act 2012, I certify that the continued delivery of 

those statutory duties will be discharged through NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical 

Commissioning Group during 2016/17. 

 

 

 

Mark Adams 

Accountable Officer 

23 May 2017  
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Remuneration and Staff Report  

Remuneration Report   

Remuneration Committee 
The remuneration committee is established to advise the Governing Body about pay, 

other benefits and terms of employment for the Chief Officer, Very Senior Managers 

(VSM) and Clinical Leads. The committee is comprised entirely of Lay Members. 

Details of remuneration committee membership, meeting frequency, items of 

business and meeting attendance are given in the Governance Statement of this 

report. 

Policy on the remuneration of senior managers  
The remuneration committee has delegated authority from the Governing Body to 

make recommendations on determinations about pay and remuneration for 

employees of the CCG that are not covered by national pay and terms and 

conditions frameworks and for people who provide services to the CCG. The 

remuneration for senior managers for current and future financial years is 

determined in accordance with relevant guidance, best practice and national policy.  

Continuation of employment for all senior managers is subject to satisfactory 

performance. Performance in post and progress in achieving set objectives is 

reviewed annually. There were no individual performance review payments made to 

any senior managers during the year and there are no plans to make such payments 

in future years outwith the ‘Very Senior Management Pay Framework’. This is in 

accordance with standard NHS terms and conditions of service and guidance issued 

by the Department of Health.  

Contracts of employment in relation to all senior managers employed by the CCG 

are permanent in nature and subject to six months’ notice of termination by either 

party. 

Termination payments are limited to those laid down in statute and those provided 

for within NHS terms and conditions of service and under the NHS Pension Scheme 

Regulations for those who are members of the scheme. No awards have been made 

during the year to past senior managers (subjected to audit). 
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We are committed to attracting, retaining and developing a diverse and skilled 

workforce that is representative of our local population. We actively work to remove 

any discriminatory practices in our work, eliminate all forms of harassment and 

promote equality of opportunity in our recruitment, training, performance 

management and development practices. We have policies and processes in place 

to support this. 

Salaries and allowances 
The remuneration figures are given in the tables below. 

Notes to salaries and allowances shown in the tables below:  

The figures in the tables relate to all those individuals who hold or who have held 

office as a senior manager in the CCG during 2016/17. The definition of a senior 

manager in the CCG is in accordance with the guidance provided in the Group 

Accounting Manual 2016/17. It is ‘those persons in senior positions having authority 

or responsibility for directing or controlling major activities within the group body. This 

means those who influence the decisions of the entity as a whole rather than the 

decisions of individual directorates or departments.’  This definition covers all 

members of the CCG Governing Body, the CCG senior managers in regular 

attendance at the Governing Body and all members of the CCG Executive 

Committee.  

On the 1 December 2016 Mark Adams was appointed as the Accountable Officer of 

North Tyneside CCG. He has received no additional remuneration to date for this 

and no recharge has been made to North Tyneside CCG. The Newcastle Gateshead 

CCG Remuneration Committee will keep this under review.  

Other than the additional role held by the CCG Chief Officer from December 2016, 

no other post-holder is shared under joint management arrangements with North 

Tyneside CCG or with any other CCG.  

The directors of public health are invited to be in attendance at the Governing Body. 

They are not employed by the CCG and receive no remuneration from the CCG for 

their CCG Governing Body role. 
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Remuneration of Very Senior Managers 

Where one or more senior managers of a CCG are paid more than £142,500 per 

annum on a pro-rata basis, equivalent to the Prime Minister’s salary, information is 

disclosed in the remuneration report. Newcastle Gateshead CCG does not have any 

senior managers that are paid more than £142,500 per annum on a pro-rata basis.  
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Senior manager remuneration 2016/17 (including salary and pension entitlements) (this has been subjected to audit) 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000)  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 
Dr Mark Dornan Chair  85-90  

- - - 80-85 

Dr Guy Pilkington  Assistant Clinical Chair 85-90  
- - 42.5-45 125-130 

Mark Adams Chief Officer 130-135 - - - 25-27.5 160-165 

Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & Operating 
Officer 120-125 35 - - - 125-130 

Chris Piercy Executive Director of Nursing, 
Patient Safety and Quality  100-105 - - - - 100-105 

Dr Neil Morris Medical Director 110-115 - - - 40-42.5 155-160 

Bill Cunliffe Secondary Care Specialist Doctor 20-25 - - - - 20-25 

Michael Burke Lay member, governance/audit 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Jeff Hurst Deputy lay chair / lay member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Paul Gertig Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Mandy Coppin 
(formerly Taylor) Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Oliver Wood Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Margaret Stewart Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Dr Alison Smith Practice representative 5-10 - - - - - 
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Senior manager remuneration 2016/17 (including salary and pension entitlements) (this has been subjected to audit) 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000)  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 
Dr Peter Ward Practice representative 0-5 - - - 120-122.5 120-125 

Sheinaz Stansfield Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Jackie Cairns  Director of Strategy and Integration 90-95 - - - 50-52.5 140-145 

Jane Mulholland Director of Operations and Delivery 90-95 - - - 50-52.5 140-145 

Julia Young Director of Quality Development 90-95 - - - 50-52.5 140-145 

Jeff Pearson Head of Corporate Affairs 0-5 - - -  0-5 

Pauline Fox Head of Corporate Affairs 40-45 - - - 2.5-5 45-50 

Dr Steve Kirk Clinical Director 70-75 - - - - 70-75 

Dr Steve Summers Clinical Director 55-60 - - - 135-137.5 190-195 
 
Expense payments (taxable) are shown in £00 and relate to lease cars 
All pensions related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions 
Jeff Pearson left his role in April 2016 

      Pauline Fox joined the CCG in June 2016 
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG remuneration report 2015/16 (this has been subjected to audit) 
 

  

Name  Title Salary 
Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000)   (bands of 

£5,000) 
(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 
Dr Guy Pilkington  Chair 90-95 - - - 95-97.5 185-190 

Dr Mark Dornan Deputy Chair 80-85 - - - 15-17.5 100-105 

Mark Adams Chief Officer 130-135 - - - 10-12.5 140-145 

Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & 
Operating Officer 120-125 17 - - - 125-130 

Chris Piercy Chief Nursing Officer 95-100 - - - - 95-100 

Dr Neil Morris Medical Director 110-115 - - - 245-247.5 355-360 

Bill Cunliffe Secondary Care Specialist 
Doctor 20-25 - - - - 20-25 

Michael Burke 
Audit committee chair and 
lay member, governance 
& audit 

10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Jeff Hurst Deputy chair and lay 
member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Paul Gertig Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Mandy Coppin 
(formerly Taylor) Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Oliver Wood Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Tim Morgan Lay member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Dr Steve Kirk Clinical Director 75-80 - - - - 75-80 

Dr Peter Ward Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG remuneration report 2015/16 (this has been subjected to audit) 
 

  

Name  Title Salary 
Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000)   (bands of 

£5,000) 
(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 
Dr Alison Smith Clinical Lead 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Sheinaz Stansfield Executive Practice 
Manager 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Tracey Stuchlik Practice representative 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Jackie Cairns  Locality Director of 
Strategy and Integration 85-90 - - - 5-7.5 90-95 

Jane Mulholland Director of Operations and 
Delivery 85-90 - - - 7.5-10 95-100 

Julia Young Director of Quality 
Development 85-90 - - - 12.5-15 95-100 

Jeff Pearson Head of Corporate Affairs 55-60 - - - 10-12.5 65-70 
 
Expense payments (taxable) are shown in £00 and relate to lease cars 
All pensions related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions 
Tracey Stuchlik left her role in August 2015 
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG senior officers pension benefits as at 31 March 2017 (this has been subjected to audit) 
 

 

Name Title 

Real increase in 
pension at 

pension age 

Real 
increase in 

pension 
lump sum at 
pension age 

Total 
accrued 

pension at 
pension age 
at 31 March 

2017 

Lump 
sum at 
pension 

age 
related to 
accrued 
pension 

at 31 
March 
2017 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 1 
April 2016 

Real 
Increase 
in Cash 

Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value  

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 
Value at 
31 March 

2017 

Employer's 
contribution 

to 
stakeholder 

pension 

(bands of £2,500) 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000)         

    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Dr Mark Dornan Chair  0-2.5 - 10-15 25-30 146 6 152 12 
Dr Guy Pilkington  Assistant Clinical Chair 0-2.5 5-7.5 15-20 55-60 363 73 436 12 
Mark Adams Chief Officer 0-2.5 5-7.5 30-35 90-95 567 56 623 19 
Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & Operating Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Chris Piercy 
Executive Director of Nursing, Patient 
Safety and Quality  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Dr Neil Morris Medical Director 2.5-5 7.5-10 10-15 40-45 226 64 290 16 
Dr Alison Smith Practice representative - - 5-10 20-25 142 - 135 1 
Peter Ward Practice representative 5-7.5 15-17.5 5-10 20-25 29 149 178 0 
Jackie Cairns Director of Strategy and Integration 2.5-5 7.5-10 25-30 85-90 510 70 581 13 
Jane Mulholland Director of Operations and Delivery 2.5-5 7.5-10 25-30 80-85 539 82 621 13 
Julia Young Director of Quality Development 2.5-5 2.5-5 25-30 65-70 375 52 427 13 
Pauline Fox Head of Corporate Affairs 0-2.5 0-2.5 20-25 65-70 - 25 450 6 
Steve Summers Clinical Director 5-7.5 17.5-20 5-10 25-30 48 136 184 8 
 
Pension related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions 
Pauline Fox joined the CCG in June 2016. Real increases in pension are a proportion for the time in post 
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG senior officers pension  benefits 2015/16 (this has been subjected to audit) 
 

    

Name Title 

Real increase in 
pension at 

pension age 

Real 
increase in 

pension 
lump sum at 
pension age 

Total 
accrued 

pension at 
pension age 
at 31 March 

2016 

Lump 
sum at 
pension 

age 
related to 
accrued 
pension 

at 31 
March 
2016  

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 1 
April 2015 

Real 
Increase 
in Cash 

Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value  

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 
Value at 
31 March 

2016 

Employer's 
contribution 

to 
stakeholder 

pension 

(bands of £2,500) 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000)         

    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Dr Guy Pilkington  Chair  2.5-5 10-12.5 15-20 50-55 281 62 363 9 
Dr Mark Dornan Deputy Chair 0-2.5 - 10-15 25-30 134 12 146 12 
Mark Adams Chief Officer 0-2.5 2.5-5 25-30 85-90 538 29 567 19 
Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & Operating Officer 0-2.5 - 45-50 130-135 790 7 798 17 
Chris Piercy Chief Nursing Officer  - - - - - - - - 
Dr Neil Morris Medical Director 10-12.5 32.5-35 10-15 35-40 6 220 226 16 
Peter Ward Practice representative - - 0-5 0-5 40 - 29 0 
Dr Alison Smith Clinical Lead 5-7.5 15-17.5 5-10 20-25 - 94 142 1 
Tracey Stuchlik Practice representative - - - - - - - 1 
Jackie Cairns Director of Strategy and Integration 0-2.5 0-2.5 25-30 75-80 491 19 510 12 
Jane Mulholland Director of Operations and Delivery 0-2.5 2.5-5 20-25 70-75 512 28 539 12 
Julia Young Director of Quality Development 0-2.5 - 20-25 60-65 359 16 375 12 
Jeff Pearson Head of Corporate Affairs 0-2.5 0-2.5 5-10 20-25 - - - 8 
 
Pension related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions 
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Cash equivalent transfer values  
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of 

the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The 

benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouses (or 

other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. 

A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension 

benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a 

scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 

pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 

consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service 

in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. 

The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension 

benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to 

the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued 

to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in 

the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and 

framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.  

Real increase in CETV 
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes 

account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the 

employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or 

arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the 

period. 

Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office (this has been subjected 
to audit) 
There was no compensation on early retirement or for loss of office during 2016/17. 

Payments to past directors (this has been subjected to audit) 
There were no payments to past directors during 2016/17. 
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Fair Pay Disclosure (this has been subjected to audit) 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration 

of the highest paid member in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 

organisation’s workforce. 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Newcastle Gateshead CCG 

in the financial year 2016/17 was £130 - 135k (2015/16, 130 – 135k). This was 2.7 

times (2015/16, 2.3) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £48,218 

(2015/16, £57,279). In 2016/17, no employee (2015/16, no employee) received 

remuneration in excess of the highest paid director. Remuneration for employees 

other than the highest paid director ranged from £15,251 to £128,247 (2015/16, 

£10,363 to £125,184). 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and 

benefits-in-kind. It does not include severance payments, employer pension 

contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. The reduction in 

the value of the median remuneration value in 2016/17 is due to the CHC 

assessment team transferring into the CCG in 2016/17, with salary values that are 

generally lower than 2015/16 median remuneration value. 

No employee receives a salary below the Living Wage.  

        Pay multiples (this has been subjected to audit) 
 

  
 

2016/17 2015/16 
Band of Highest Paid Director's Total Remuneration (£'000)  130-135 130-135 
Median Total Remuneration (£)  48,218 57,279 
Ratio    2.7 2.3 

         

Staff Report  

Number of senior managers 
The CCG had 22 senior managers in post as at 31 March 2017. The definition of a 

senior manager in the CCG is in accordance with the guidance provided in the 

Group Accounting Manual 2016/17. It is ‘those persons in senior positions having 

authority or responsibility for directing or controlling major activities within the group 
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body. This means those who influence the decisions of the entity as a whole rather 

than the decisions of individual directorates or departments.’  This definition covers 

all members of the CCG Governing Body, the CCG senior managers in regular 

attendance at the Governing Body and all members of the CCG Executive 

Committee. There are no additional managers with significant financial responsibility. 

Staff numbers and costs (this has been subjected to audit) 
Staff numbers and costs are analysed by permanent employees and ‘other.’ 

Permanently employed refers to members of staff with a permanent (UK) 

employment contract directly with the CCG. ‘Other’ refers to any member of staff 

engaged that does not have a permanent (UK) employment contract with the CCG. 

This includes employees on short term contracts of employment and 

agency/temporary staff. 

 

 

Permanent 
Employees Other Total 

Average number of people employed   86 4 90 
 

 

Permanent 
Employees Other Total 

Staff costs £'000 £'000 £'000 
Salaries and wages 4,362 248 4,609 
Social security costs 466 0 466 
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 517 0 517 
Staff costs 5,345 248 5,593 

 

The figures exclude lay members of the Governing Body. 
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Staff composition 
The CCG staff gender profile as at 31 March 2017 is given in the table below. This 

reflects our gender representation on the Governing Body, very senior manager 

(VSM) staff and all other CCG staff.   

Category of staff 

 
Total 

number of 
staff / 

members  

 
Number of 
male staff / 
members 

 

 
% male 

 
Number of 

female staff / 
members 

 

 
% female  

Senior officers* 7 4 57% 3 43% 

 
Other employees 
(who are not senior 
officers) 
 

132 37 28% 95 72% 

 
Total employees 
 

139 41 29% 98 71% 

Governing body 
members** 19 12 63% 7 37% 

 
* The CCG’s seven Very Senior Managers (VSM) are employees and are all 

members of the Governing Body therefore all are included in all the figures shown 

below 

**This figure includes substantive voting members only, as detailed in the 

accountability report section of this annual report.  The Governing Body figures are 

provided as standalone figures, they do not contribute to the total figure for the whole 

CCG as some members may also be senior managers and some may not be on the 

payroll and not included in the total. 

The CCG can demonstrate fair and equitable recruitment, workforce engagement 

and employment terms and conditions to ensure levels of pay and related terms and 

conditions are fairly determined for all posts, with staff doing equal work, and work 

rated as of equal value, being entitled to equal pay. 

Sickness absence data  
The CCG has an agreed policy on the management of staff absence which ensures 

all staff are treated fairly and equitably, with the relevant support from line managers 

and HR advisors. The CCG also has access to occupational health services. The 

sickness absence data for 2016 is given in the table below.  
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Average of 12 
months 
(2016 calendar 
year) 
 

Average FTE 
2016 
 

FTE Days 
Available 
 

FTE Days 
Lost to 
sickness 
absence 

Average 
Sick Days 
per FTE 
 

Estimated Cost 
of Sickness 
Absence 
 

3.44% 86.97 19,568 674 7.7 £139,304 
FTE – Full time equivalent 

Staff policies 
The CCG has a suite of staff policies in place. The CCG has taken positive steps 

throughout the year to maintain and develop the provision of information to, and 

consultation with employees, including: 

• Providing employees systematically with information on matters of concern 
to them as employees 

• Consulting employees and their representatives on a regular basis so that 
the views of employees can be taken into account in making decisions which 
are likely to affect their interests 

• Encouraging the involvement of employees in the CCG’s performance  

• Taking actions throughout the year to achieve a common awareness on the 
part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the 
performance of the CCG 

• Membership of the North East Partnership Forum, where staff 
representatives and CCG managers from across the region meet together 

Expenditure on consultancy 
The CCG incurred £136,000 on consultancy expenditure in 2016/17 on behalf of the 

14 NHS organisations in the Northumberland, Tyne and Wear and North Durham 

STP area. The CCG received a specific allocation from NHS England to cover these 

costs.  

Off-payroll engagements  
The CCG did not have any off-payroll engagements for more than £220 per day for 

longer than 6 months in duration during 2016/17.  

Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments (this has been 
subjected to audit) 
There were no exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments made 

during 2016/17. 
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary 

Accountability and Audit Report. Disclosures on losses are included as notes in the 

Financial Statements of this report at note 18, page 18.  An audit certificate and 

report is also included in this Annual Report at page 95. 
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Report by the Auditors to the members of the 
CCG 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE GOVERNING BODY OF NHS 
NEWCASTLE GATESHEAD CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP  
 

We have audited the financial statements of NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG (the 

CCG) for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net 

Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in 

Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes. The financial 

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 

Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the 2016-17 Government Reporting 

Manual as contained in the Department of Health Group Accounting Manual 2016-17 

and the Accounts Direction issued by the NHS Commissioning Board with the 

approval of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National Health Service in 

England (the Accounts Direction).  

 

We have also audited the information in the Remuneration and Staff Report that is 

described as being subject to audit. 

 

This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of NHS Newcastle 

Gateshead CCG as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 

the members of the Governing Body of the CCG those matters we are required to 

state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 

Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the 

opinions we have formed.  
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Respective responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and auditor  

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, 

the Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 

and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and is also responsible for 

ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. Our responsibility is to audit and 

express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law 

and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require 

us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. We 

are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and 

income in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the Comptroller 

and Auditor General as required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 

"Code of Audit Practice"). 

 

As explained in the Governance Statement, the Accountable officer is responsible for 

the arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the 

CCG's resources. We are required under Section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements 

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Section 

21(5)(b) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires that our report must 

not contain our opinion if we are satisfied that proper arrangements are in place.  

 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the 

CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources are operating effectively. 

 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements  

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 

This includes assessing:  

• whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the CCG’s circumstances 

and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;  
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• the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the 

Accountable Officer; and  

• the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual 

report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 

identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 

inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the 

audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 

inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. In addition, we are 

required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 

expenditure and income reported in the financial statements have been applied to 

the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the 

authorities which govern them.  

 

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in the use of resources  

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, 

having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller 

and Auditor General in November 2016, as to whether the CCG had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources 

to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The 

Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to 

consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG 

put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017. 

  

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our 

risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a 

view on whether, in all significant respects, the CCG had put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources.  
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Opinion on the financial statements  

In our opinion the financial statements:  

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of NHS Newcastle Gateshead 

CCG as at 31 March 2017 and of its net expenditure and income for the year 

then ended; and  

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Health and Social Care 

Act 2012 and the Accounts Directions issued thereunder.  

Opinion on regularity  

In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reflected in the 

financial statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and 

the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.  

Opinion on other matters  

In our opinion:  

• the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be audited have been 

properly prepared in accordance with the Annual Report Directions made 

under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and 

Social Care Act 2012); and  

• the other information published together with the audited financial statements 

in the annual report and accounts is consistent with the financial statements. 

Matters on which we report by exception  

We are required to report to you if: 

• in our opinion the Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance 

issued by the NHS England; or  

• we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that the 

CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or has made, a decision 

which involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is 

about to take, or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its 

conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or  

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24, schedule 7 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or 
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• we make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24, schedule 7 

of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or  

• we are not satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 

ended 31 March 2017.  

 

We have nothing to report in these respects.  

 

Certificate  

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS Newcastle 

Gateshead CCG in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.  

 

 

 
 

Gareth Davies 

Partner For and on behalf of Mazars LLP  

Salvus House  

Aykley Heads  

Durham  

DH1 5TS  

 

24 May 2017  
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Appendix One - Annual Accounts

Entity name: NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG
This year 2016-17
This year ended 31-March-2017
This year commencing: 01-April-2016



NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Page Number

The Primary Statements:

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2017 1
Statement of Financial Position as at 31st March 2017 2
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity for the year ended 31st March 2017 3
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2017 4

Notes to  the Accounts Note Number
Accounting policies 1 5-6
Other operating revenue 2 7
Revenue 3 7
Employee benefits and staff numbers 4 8-9
Operating expenses 5 10
Better payment practice code 6 11
Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption 7 11
Operating leases 8 11
Trade and other receivables 9 12
Cash and cash equivalents 10 13
Trade and other payables 11 13
Provisions 12 13
Financial instruments 13 14-15
Operating segments 14 16
Pooled budgets 15 16
Related party transactions 16 17
Events after the end of the reporting period 17 18
Losses and special payments 18 18
Financial performance targets 19 18

CONTENTS



1

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16
Note £'000 £'000

Other operating revenue 2 (1,194) (392)
Total operating revenue (1,194) (392)

Staff costs 4 5,593 4,399
Purchase of goods and services 5 716,194 692,310
Depreciation and impairment charges 5 0 64
Other Operating Expenditure 5 285 332
Total operating expenditure 722,072 697,105

Net Operating Expenditure 720,878 696,713

Net Loss on Transfer by Absorption 7 0 36,902
Total Net Expenditure for the year 720,878 733,615

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2017 720,878 733,615
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Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16

Note £'000 £'000
Current assets:
Trade and other receivables 9 6,143 4,923
Cash and cash equivalents 10 40 260
Total current assets 6,183 5,183

Total assets 6,183 5,183

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 (47,890) (48,082)
Total current liabilities (47,890) (48,082)

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (41,707) (42,899)

Non-current liabilities 0 0
Total non-current liabilities 0 0

Assets less Liabilities (41,707) (42,899)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund (41,707) (42,899)
Total taxpayers' equity: (41,707) (42,899)

The notes on pages 5 to 18 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 were approved by the Governing Body on 23 May 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Mark Adams
Chief Accountable Officer
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended
31 March 2017

General fund
Total 

reserves
£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17

Balance at 01 April 2016 (42,899) (42,899)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17
Net operating expenditure for the financial year SOCNE (720,878) (720,878)

Net funding SCF 722,070 722,070

Balance at 31 March 2017 (41,707) (41,707)

General fund
Total 

reserves
£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

Balance at 01 April 2015 0 0

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Net operating expenditure for the financial year including absorption losses SOCNE (733,615) (733,615)

Net funding SCF 690,716 690,716

Balance at 31 March 2016 (42,899) (42,899)

The notes on pages 5 to 18 form part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16
Note £'000 £'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (720,878) (733,615)
Depreciation and amortisation 5 0 64
Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption 7 0 (64)
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 9 (1,220) (4,923)
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 11 (192) 48,082
Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities (722,290) (690,456)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities 0 0

Net Cash Outflow before Financing (722,290) (690,456)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in Aid Funding Received 722,070 690,716
Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities 722,070 690,716

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 (220) 260

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 10 260 0

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Financial Year 10 40 260

The notes on pages 5 to 18 form part of this statement
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of Clinical Commissioning Groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group 
Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the Group Accounting Manual 2016-17 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Group Accounting Manual 
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to Clinical Commissioning Groups, as 
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Group Accounting Manual permits a choice of 
accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Clinical Commissioning 
Group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the Clinical Commissioning Group are 
described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Going Concern
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as 
evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.
Where a Clinical Commissioning Group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, 
by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of Financial Statements.  If services will 
continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2  Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only 
if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.4 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting Manual, 
issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions have not 
been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement 
of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed separately from operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income 
and expenditure entries.

1.5 Pooled Budgets
Where the Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 
the Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled 
budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.
Joint operations are arrangements where contractual agreements are in place under which the Clinical Commissioning Group and one or more 
other parties share control. Joint ventures have rights to assets and obligations in relation to liabilities. The Clinical Commissioning Group accounts 
only for its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the arrangement.

1.6 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates 
and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.

1.6.1  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
The only critical judgements are those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of applying the Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

1.6.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
The majority of transactions reported are based upon actual transactions, in some cases estimates are required when actual charges have not 
been received. When this occurs the Clinical Commissioning Group calculates estimates taking account of the latest information available and 
actual year to date transactions. The main estimate in 2016/17 related to prescribing expenditure which is two months in arrears and is based on 
BSA profiling, the accrual within the accounts is £13.4m.

1.7 Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration receivable.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

1.8 Employee Benefits
1.8.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees, including 
bonuses earned but not yet taken.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees 
are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

1.8.2 Retirement Benefit Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that 
covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The 
scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning Group of participating in 
the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability 
for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Clinical Commissioning Group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the 
method of payment.

1.9 Other Expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair 
value of the consideration payable.
Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, 
which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.10 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.10.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned 
between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in calculating the Clinical Commissioning Group’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a 
liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are 
operating or finance leases.

1.11 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are 
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant 
risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an 
integral part of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s cash management.

1.12 Clinical Negligence Costs
The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the 
NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS 
Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the Clinical Commissioning Group.

1.13 Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The Clinical Commissioning Group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 
schemes under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives 
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are 
charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.14 Continuing healthcare risk pooling
In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was been introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013, the 
balance relating to the Clinical Commissioning Group is disclosed in note 12. Under the scheme NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical 
Commissioning Group contribute annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the claims. The contributions made by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group are determined by NHS England and are disclosed in note 5.

1.15 Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the 
asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
·                Held to maturity investments;
·                Available for sale financial assets; and,
·                Loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

1.15.1 Loans & Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. After initial 
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is recognised using the 
effective interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to the 
initial fair value of the financial asset.
At the end of the reporting period, the Clinical Commissioning Group assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value 
through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in 
expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the 
receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been 
recognised.

1.16 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-
recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

1.17 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of 
fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.18 Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed 
legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the 
generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would 
have been made good through insurance cover had the Clinical Commissioning Group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums 
then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.19 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2016-17, all of which are 
subject to consultation:
·                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments ( application from 1 January 2018)
·                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts ( not applicable to DH groups bodies)
·                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers (application from 1 January 2018)
·                IFRS 16: Leases (application from 1 January 2019)
The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2016-17, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education, training and research 0 0 0 83
Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: non-NHS 114 20 94 78
Non-patient care services to other bodies 0 0 0 66
Other revenue 1,080 68 1,012 165
Total other operating revenue 1,194 88 1,106 392

Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

3 Revenue
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

From rendering of services 1,194 88 1,106 392
Total 1,194 88 1,106 392

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of NHS 
Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group and credited to the General Fund. Included in the note above is £252k revenue 
from NHS England which does not form part of the drawdown.

Admin charitable contributions represents payment for clinical sessions met by charities. Programme charitiable contributions represents 
funding received from British Heart Foundation for House of Care Project.
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1 Employee benefits 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

Total
Permanent 
Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000
Salaries and wages 4,610 4,362 248
Social security costs 466 466 0
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 517 517 0
Gross employee benefits expenditure 5,593 5,345 248

4.1 Employee benefits 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Total
Permanent 
Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000
Salaries and wages 3,650 3,556 94
Social security costs 313 313 0
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 436 436 0
Gross employee benefits expenditure 4,399 4,305 94

4.2 Average number of people employed
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

Total
Permanently 

employed Other
Number Number Number

Total 90 86 4

Of the above:

Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on capital projects 0 0 0

4.2 Average number of people employed
2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Total
Permanently 

employed Other
Number Number Number

Total 63 61 2

Of the above:

Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on capital projects 0 0 0

4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
2016-17 2015-16
Number Number

Total Days Lost 674 146
Total Staff Years 87 67
Average working Days Lost 8 2

Sickness reporting in 2015/16 is based upon 9 months' data from April 2015 to December 2015, the date the Clinical 
Commissioning Group was established. 
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4.4 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under 
these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.

The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the 
direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS 
bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.

Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical 
Commissioning Group of participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the 
accounting period.

The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation every 
year. An outline of these follows:

4.4.1 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the Scheme (taking into account 
its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The 
last such valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2012 and covered the period from 1 
April 2008 to that date. Details can be found on the pension scheme website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. 

For 2016-17, employers’ contributions of £517k (2015-16: £436k) were payable to the NHS Pension Scheme at the rate of 14.3% of
pensionable pay. The scheme’s actuary reviews employer contributions, usually every four years and now based on HMT Valuation
Directions, following a full scheme valuation. The latest review used data from 31 March 2012 and was published on the
Government website on 9 June 2012. These costs are included in the NHS pension line of note 4.1. 
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5. Operating expenses
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members 4,426 3,032 1,394 3,288
Executive governing body members 1,167 1,167 0 1,111
Total gross employee benefits 5,593 4,199 1,394 4,399

Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England 6,161 3,323 2,838 7,127
Services from foundation trusts 503,999 69 503,929 478,606
Services from other NHS trusts 1,016 0 1,016 914
Services from other government bodies 1 0 1 0
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 114,805 0 114,805 116,104
Chair and Non Executive Members 271 271 0 278
Supplies and services – general 55 49 6 93
Consultancy services 136 136 0 46
Establishment 335 191 143 271
Transport 49 17 33 28
Premises 1,464 325 1,139 1,047
Impairments and reversals of receivables 4 4 0 11
Depreciation 0 0 0 64
Audit fees 84 84 0 84
Prescribing costs 84,756 0 84,756 83,385
Pharmaceutical services 235 0 235 220
General Practice Commissioning 1,487 0 1,487 1,050
Other professional fees excl. audit 524 454 70 979
Clinical negligence 10 10 0 12
Research and development (excluding staff costs) 0 0 0 31
Education and training 251 138 113 264
CHC Risk Pool contributions 837 0 837 2,092
Total other costs 716,479 5,071 711,408 692,706

Total operating expenses 722,072 9,270 712,802 697,105

Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.
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6 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16
Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 13,975 133,282 12,686 135,554
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 13,487 131,565 12,193 133,384

96.51% 98.71% 96.11% 98.40%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 3,660 508,174 3,545 487,486
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 3,580 507,282 3,446 485,925

97.81% 99.82% 97.21% 99.68%

7. Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption

2016-17 2015-16
£'000 £'000

Transfer of property plant and equipment 0 64
Transfer of cash and cash equivalents 0 359
Transfer of receivables 0 8,630
Transfer of payables 0 (45,955)
Net loss on transfers by absorption 0 (36,902)

8. Operating Leases

8.1 As lessee
8.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments 0 1,357 4 1,361 0 969 13 982
Total 0 1,357 4 1,361 0 969 13 982

8.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16
Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:
No later than one year 0 0 6 6 0 0 14               14
Between one and five years 0 0 9 9 0 0 34               34
After five years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 15 15 0 0 48 48

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target

The Better Payment Practice Code requires NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group to pay 95% of invoices by the due 
date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Whilst our arrangements with Community Health Partnerships Limited and NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charge for future years 
have not yet been agreed. Consequently this note does not include future minimum lease payments for these arrangements.

Transfers as part of a reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The 
Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been 
restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions 
transfer within the public sector.  Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed 
separately from operating costs. 

In 2015/16, NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group was established with effect from 1 April 2015 following approval at the NHS England Assurance and 
Development Committee meeting of 7 July 2014. NHS Newcastle North and East Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS Newcastle West Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS 
Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group were dissolved on 31 March 2015. 

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target
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9  Trade and other receivables
2016-17 2015-16

£'000 £'000

NHS receivables: Revenue 1,280 345
NHS prepayments 1,783 1,887
NHS accrued income 152 37
Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 2,799 2,045
Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 16 13
Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 84 449
Provision for the impairment of receivables (15) (11)
VAT 44 158
Total Trade & other receivables 6,143 4,923

Total current 6,143 4,923

9.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2016-17 2015-16
£'000 £'000

By up to three months 156 498
By three to six months 89 33
By more than six months 645 34
Total 890 565

9.2  Provision for impairment of receivables 2016-17 2015-16
£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April (11) 0

Amounts recovered during the year 7 0
(Increase) decrease in receivables impaired (11) (11)
Balance at 31 March (15) (11)

All debts outstanding at 31 March 2017 overdue in excess of 6 months have been reviewed in 
respect of current position, any outstanding queries and probability of settlement. Where it is 
perceived that there is high level of risk that the Clinical Commissioning Group will be unable to 
recover these debts a bad debt provision has been created.

The great majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by Government to 
provide funding to Clinical Commissioning Groups to commission services, no credit scoring of 
them is considered necessary.
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10 Cash and cash equivalents

2016-17 2015-16
£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2016 260 359
Net change in year (220) (99)
Balance at 31 March 2017 40 260

Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service 40 260
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 40 260

Balance at 31 March 2017 40 260

2016-17 2015-16
£'000 £'000

NHS payables: revenue 10,469 6,256
NHS accruals 4,465 3,937
Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 8,681 7,129
Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 23,895 30,413
Social security costs 71 52
Tax 75 66
Other payables and accruals 234 229
Total Trade & Other Payables 47,890 48,082

Total current 47,890 48,082

12  Provisions

Other payables include £88k of outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2017.

Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for accounting for 
liabilities relating to NHS Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before establishment of NHS Newcastle 
Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group. However, the legal liability remains with NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical 
Commissioning Group. The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on 
behalf of NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group at 31 March 2017 is £3,256k (2015/16: £4,997k).

11 Trade and other payables
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13 Financial instruments

13.1 Financial risk management

13.1.1 Currency risk

13.1.2 Interest rate risk

13.1.3 Credit risk

13.1.4 Liquidity risk

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group borrows from government for capital expenditure when applicable, subject to 
affordability as confirmed by NHS England. The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is 
charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group therefore 
has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group revenue comes from parliamentary funding, NHS 
Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial 
year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are 
financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group draws down cash to 
cover expenditure, as the need arises. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group is not, therefore, exposed to significant 
liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 
changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group is financed through parliamentary funding therefore it is not exposed to the 
degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than 
would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical 
Commissioning Group has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day 
operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group in 
undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS Newcastle 
Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is 
subject to review by NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group and internal auditors.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, 
assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has no overseas 
operations. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group and therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
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13 Financial instruments cont'd

13.2 Financial assets

Loans and 
Receivables Total

2016-17 2016-17
£'000 £'000

Receivables:
·          NHS 1,432 1,432
·          Non-NHS 2,883 2,883
Cash at bank and in hand 40 40
Total at 31 March 2017 4,355 4,355

Loans and 
Receivables Total

2015-16 2015-16
£'000 £'000

Receivables:
·          NHS 382 382
·          Non-NHS 2,494 2,494
Cash at bank and in hand 260 260
Total at 31 March 2016 3,136 3,136

13.3 Financial liabilities

Other
2016-17

£'000
Payables:
·          NHS 14,934
·          Non-NHS 32,810
Total at 31 March 2017 47,744

Other
2015-16

£'000
Payables:
·          NHS 10,193
·          Non-NHS 37,771
Total at 31 March 2016 47,964
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14 Operating segments

15 Pooled budgets

2016-17 2015-16
£'000 £'000

Income 0 0
Expenditure 37,645 37,394

The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group shares of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial 
year were:

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has a pooled budget arrangement with Newcastle City Council for the Better 
Care Fund, which the Council hosts. The Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the income and expenditure of the pool as 
determined by the pooled budget agreement. The annual contribution to the pooled budget for 2016/17 was £21,054,000.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has a pooled budget arrangement with Gateshead Council for the Better Care 
Fund, which the Council hosts. The Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the income and expenditure of the pool as 
determined by the pooled budget agreement. The annual contribution to the pooled budget for 2016/17 was £15,008,000.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group hosted a pooled budget arrangement with Gateshead Council for the provision of 
an Integrated Community Equipment Service. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group also has a pooled budget 
arrangement with Gateshead Council where the Local Authority hosts the pooled budget. This is in relation to the Mental Capacity Act. NHS 
Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the income and expenditure of the pool as determined by the 
pooled budget agreements for both of these arrangements. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group's share of the income and expenditure 
handled by the pooled budgets in the financial year was £1,583,000.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group only has one operating segment: commissioning of healthcare services. 
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16 Related party transactions

Payments to 
Related Party

Receipts 
from Related 

Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party

Amounts due 
from Related 

Party

Payments 
to Related 

Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 
Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 
Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Newcastle Gateshead GP member practices

108 Rawling Road 30 0 0 0 32 0 0 0

Avenue Medical Practice 31 0 0 0 38 0 0 0
Beacon View Medical Centre 77 0 0 0 80 0 0 0
Benfield Park Medical Group (formerly 37a Heaton Road) 80 0 0 0 89 0 0 0
Bensham Family Practice 54 0 0 0 56 0 0 0
Betts Avenue Medical Centre 96 0 0 0 89 0 0 0
Bewick Road Surgery 80 0 0 0 93 0 0 0
Biddlestone Health Group 69 0 0 0 68 0 0 0
Birtley Medical Group 284 0 0 0 307 0 0 0
Blaydon GP Practice & Minor Injuries/illness unit 13 0 0 0 3 0 0 0
Bridges Medical Centre 88 0 0 0 79 0 0 0
Broadway Medical Centre 44 0 0 0 30 0 0 0
Brunton Park Health Centre 56 0 0 0 50 0 0 0
Central Gateshead Medical Group 154 0 0 0 156 0 0 0
Chainbridge Medical Partnership 196 0 0 0 179 0 0 0
Crawcrook Surgery 166 0 0 0 115 0 0 0
Crowhall Medical Centre 126 0 0 0 121 0 0 0
Cruddas Park Surgery 157 0 0 0 146 0 0 0
Denton Park Medical Group 90 0 0 0 100 0 0 0
Denton Turret Medical Centre 87 0 0 0 94 0 0 0
Dilston Medical Centre 73 0 0 0 60 0 0 0
Falcon Medical Group 32 0 0 0 66 0 0 0
Fell Cottage Surgery 203 0 0 0 215 0 0 0
Fell Tower Medical Centre 172 0 0 0 163 0 0 0
Fenham Hall Medical Group 87 0 0 0 78 0 0 0
Glenpark Medical Centre 166 0 0 0 154 0 0 0
Gosforth Memorial Medical Centre 105 0 0 0 113 0 0 0
Grainger Medical Group incorporating Scotswood GP Practice 85 0 0 0 65 0 0 0
Grange Road 99 0 0 0 58 0 0 0
Heaton Road Surgery 93 0 0 0 80 0 0 0
Holly Medical Group 70 0 0 0 62 0 0 0
Hollyhurst 37 0 0 0 43 0 0 0
Holmside Medical Group 119 0 0 0 87 0 0 0
Longrigg Medical Centre 171 0 0 0 176 0 0 0
Metro Interchange Surgery 55 0 0 0 50 0 0 0
Millennium Family Practice 53 0 0 0 63 0 0 0
Newburn Surgery 75 0 0 0 81 0 0 0
Newcastle Medical Centre 48 0 0 0 59 0 0 0
Oldwell Surgery 72 0 0 0 74 0 0 0
Oxford Terrace & Rawling Road Medical Group 405 0 0 0 460 0 0 0
Park Medical Group 92 0 0 0 131 0 0 0
Parkway Medical Group 99 0 0 0 80 0 0 0
Pelaw Medical Centre 236 0 0 0 243 0 0 0
Ponteland Road Health Centre 31 0 0 0 28 0 0 0
Primary Health Care Centre 69 0 0 0 78 0 0 0
Prospect Medical Group 125 0 0 0 132 0 0 0
Regent Medical Centre (formerly Elmfield Health Group) 43 0 0 0 41 0 0 0
Roseworth Surgery 68 0 0 0 66 0 0 0
Ryton Surgery 61 0 0 0 42 0 0 0
Saville Medical Group 310 0 0 0 215 0 0 0
Second Street Surgery 64 0 0 0 41 0 0 0
St Anthony's Health Centre 99 0 0 0 60 0 0 0
St. Albans Medical Group 204 0 0 0 204 0 0 0
Sunniside Surgery 51 0 0 0 55 0 0 0
Teams Medical Practice 83 0 0 0 82 0 0 0
The Grove Medical Group 179 0 0 0 182 0 0 0
The Medical Centre (Rowlands Gill) 130 0 0 0 97 0 0 0
The Surgery 82 0 0 0 52 0 0 0
Thornfield Medical Group 144 0 0 0 108 0 0 0
Throckley Primary Care 77 0 0 0 95 0 0 0
Walker Medical Group 95 0 0 0 101 0 0 0
West Road medical Centre 114 0 0 0 103 0 0 0
Westerhope Medical Group 93 0 0 0 100 0 0 0
Whickham Health Centre 292 0 0 0 216 0 0 0
Wrekenton Medical Group ( incorporating The Croft and High Street Practices) 184 0 0 0 172 0 0 0

Falcon Medical Group merged with Thornfield Medical Group in October 2016.

Payments to 
Related Party

Receipts 
from Related 

Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 

Party

Amounts due 
from Related 

Party

Payments 
to Related 

Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 
Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 
Party

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 248,257 0 8,691 1,080 233,229 0 6,096 1,065
• Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 138,834 0 2,160 921 125,623 0 1,192 720
• Northumberland, Tyne & Wear NHS Trust 63,393 0 625 0 62,223 0 465 16
• South Tyneside NHS Foundation Trust 15,915 0 266 0 24,104 0 500 0
• North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 20,061 0 69 0 19,611 0 160 0

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group also commission GP practices to provide healthcare services to patients.

Newcastle Gateshead GP member practices have carried out functions for NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group and remuneration has been paid to practices in recognition of their contribution.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the 
Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example:

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group also has other non material transactions with other NHS related parties that include:

In addition, NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies. The majority of 
these transactions were with the Local Authorities to the value of £34,197,000 with Newcastle Council and £25,692,000 with Gateshead Council.

• NHS England, NHS Litigation Authority and NHS Business Services Authority.

2016-17 2015-16

2016-17 2015-16
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17 Events after the end of the reporting period

18 Losses

Total Number 
of Cases

Total Value of 
Cases

Total Number 
of Cases

Total Value of 
Cases

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16
Number £'000 Number £'000

Administrative write-offs 44 4 36 11

Total 44 4 36 11

19 Financial performance targets

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).
NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17
£'000 £'000 £'000

Target Performance Variance Duty Achieved
Expenditure not to exceed income 731,594 720,878 10,716 Yes

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 731,594 720,878 10,716 Yes

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 10,642 9,182 1,460 Yes

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16
£'000 £'000 £'000

Target Performance Variance Duty Achieved
Expenditure not to exceed income 706,988 696,713 10,275 Yes

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 706,988 696,713 10,275 Yes

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 10,716 9,966 750 Yes

NHS England recently announced details of the Clinical Commissioning Groups approved to take on greater delegated responsibility or to jointly commission GP services from 1st 
April 2017. The new primary care co-commissioning arrangements are part of a series of changes set out in the NHS Five Year Forward View.  

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has been approved under delegated commissioning arrangements which mean that the Clinical Commissioning Group 
will assume full responsibility of £67.3m delegated budgets for contractual GP performance management, budget management and the design and implementation of local incentive 
schemes from 1st April 2017.

2015/16 revenue administration resource has been restated to exclude £930k Quality Premium allocation. 2016/17 business rules states Quality Premium should be reported as 
programme spend.

The total number of NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group losses and special payments cases, and their total value, was as follows:

Within the 2016/17 accounts no amounts have been written off as we are continuing to pursue these debts.
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